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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(AR 3IE)

1.

BACKGROUND OF THE COMPANY

Tidetime Sun (Group) Limited (formerly known as Sun

Media Group Holdings Limited) (the “Company”) was

incorporated in Bermuda under the Companies Act 1981

of Bermuda. The Company and its subsidiaries (the

“Group”) are principally engaged in the media-related

business, including broadcasting and publishing business.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (which includes all applicable
Statements of Standard Accounting Practice and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants, accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. These financial statements
also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. A summary of the significant accounting
policies adopted by the Group is set out below.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(AR 3IE)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial

statements

(i)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries except for non-controlled
subsidiaries (see note 19) made up to 31
March each year. The results of controlled
subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated
income statement from or to the date of their
acquisition or disposal, as appropriate. All
material intra-group balances and transactions

are eliminated on consolidation.

As explained in note 19 to the financial
statements, certain of the Company’s
subsidiaries (“Unconsolidated Subsidiaries”)
were disposed of after the balance sheet date
and Satellite Entertainment Communication
Company Limited (“SECC") was disposed of
during the year, the Group was unable to
exercise control over the financial and
operating decisions of the Unconsolidated
Subsidiaries and SECC, and the Group was
also not able to access their books and
records together with the supporting
documents for the year ended 31 March
2005. Accordingly, the Unconsolidated
Subsidiaries and SECC were not regarded as
controlled subsidiaries of the Company and
were deconsolidated from the consolidated
financial statements with effect from 1 April
2004. Particulars of these non-controlled
subsidiaries are set out in note 19 to the

financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(AR 3IE)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements (Continued)

(ii) Basis of measurement

The financial statements are prepared on the
historical cost basis except that investments
in securities are stated at fair value if the

relevant fair value is available.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is a company in which the Company,
directly or indirectly, holds more than half of the
issued share capital, or controls more than half of
the voting power, or controls the composition of
the board of directors. Subsidiaries are considered
to be controlled if the Company has the power,
directly or indirectly, to govern the financial and
operating policies of an enterprise so as to obtain
benefits from its activities.

Intra-group balances and transactions, and any
unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions, are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains,
but only to the extent that there is no evidence of

impairment.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(AR 3IE)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

Minority interests at the balance sheet date, being
the portion of the net assets of subsidiaries
attributable to equity interests that are not owned
by the Company, whether directly or indirectly
through subsidiaries, are presented in the
consolidated balance sheet separately from
liabilities and the shareholders’ equity. Minority
interests in the results of the Group for the year
are also separately presented in the income

statement.

Where losses attributable to the minority exceed
the minority interest in the net assets of a
subsidiary, the excess, and any further losses
attributable to the minority, are charged against
the Group’s interest except to the extent that the
minority has a binding obligation to, and is able
to, make good the losses. All subsequent profits
of the subsidiary are allocated to the Group until
the minority’s share of losses previously absorbed
by the Group has been recovered.

In the Company’s balance sheet, an investment in
a subsidiary is stated at cost less any impairment
losses (see note 2(k)), unless it is acquired and
held exclusively with a view to subsequent disposal
in the near future or operates under severe long-
term restrictions which significantly impair its ability
to transfer funds to the Company, in which case,
it is stated at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in the income statement as they arise.
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(AR 3IE)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

Associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group has
significant influence, but not control or joint
control, over its management, including
participation in the financial and operating policy

decisions.

An investment in an associate is accounted for in
the consolidated financial statements under the
equity method and is initially recorded at cost and
adjusted thereafter for the post acquisition change
in the Group’s share of the associate’s net assets,
unless it is acquired and held exclusively with a
view to subsequent disposal in the near future or
operates under severe long-term restrictions that
significantly impair its ability to transfer funds to
the investor or venturer, in which case it is stated
at fair value with changes in fair value recognised
in the consolidated income statement as they arise.
The consolidated income statement reflects the
Group’s share of the post-acquisition results of the
associates for the year, including any amortisation
of positive or negative goodwill charged or credited
during the year in accordance with note 2(e). When
the Group’s share of losses exceeds the carrying
amount of the associate, the carrying amount is
reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is
discontinued except to the extent that the Group
has incurred obligations in respect of the associate.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its associates
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest
in the associate or jointly controlled entity, except
where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred, in which case
they are recognised immediately in the income
statement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(AR 3IE)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e)

Goodwill

Positive goodwill arising on consolidation represents
the excess of the cost of the acquisition over the
Group's share of the fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities acquired. Positive goodwill is
stated in the consolidated balance sheet at cost
less any accumulated amortisation and any
impairment losses (see note 2(k)). Positive goodwill
is amortised to the consolidated income statement
on a straight-line basis over its estimated useful
life.

Negative goodwill arising on acquisitions of
subsidiaries represents the excess of the Group’s
share of the fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities acquired over the cost of the
acquisition. To the extent that negative goodwill
relates to an expectation of future losses and
expenses that are identified in the plan of
acquisition and can be measured reliably, but which
have not yet been recognised, it is recognised in
the consolidated income statement when the future
losses and expenses are recognised. Any remaining
negative goodwill, but not exceeding the fair values
of the non-monetary assets acquired, is recognised
in the consolidated income statement over the
weighted average useful life of those non-monetary
assets that are depreciable/amortisable. Negative
goodwill in excess of the fair values of the non-
monetary assets acquired is recognised immediately

in the consolidated income statement.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e)

Goodwill (Continued)

Negative goodwill arising on acquisitions of
controlled subsidiaries, associates and jointly
controlled entities represent the excess of the
group’s share of the fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities acquired over the cost of the
acquisition. Negative goodwill is accounted for to
the extent that negative goodwill relates to an
expectation of future losses and expenses that are
identified in the plan of acquisition and can be
measured reliably, but which have not yet been
recognised, it is recognised in the consolidated
income statement when the future losses and
expenses are recognised. Any remaining negative
goodwill, but not exceeding the fair values of the
non-monetary assets acquired, is recognised in the
consolidated income statement over the weighted
average useful life of those non-monetary assets
that are depreciable/amortisable. Negative goodwill
in excess of the fair values of the non-monetary
assets acquired is recognised immediately in the
consolidated income statement.

In respect of any negative goodwill not yet

recognised in the consolidated income statement:

— for subsidiaries, such negative goodwill is
shown in the consolidated balance sheet as
a deduction from assets in the same balance

sheet classification as positive goodwill; and

— for associates such negative goodwill is
includes in the carrying amount of the
interests in associates.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e)

(f)

Goodwill (Continued)

On disposal of a subsidiary or an associate during
the year, any attributable amount of purchased
goodwill not previously amortised through the
consolidated income statement is included in the
calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.

Other investments in securities

The Group’'s and the Company’s policies for
investments in securities other than investments in
subsidiaries and associates are as follows:

(i) Equity securities

Equity securities held for trading are classified
as current assets and are stated at fair value,
with any resultant gain or loss recognised in
the income statement. Other equity securities
are classified as being available-for-sale and
are stated at fair value, with any resultant
gain or loss being recognised in the income

statement.

(ii) Fair value

The fair values of investments held for trading
and investments available-for-sale are their
quoted bid prices at the balance sheet date.
If a quoted bid price in an active market and
other methods of determining fair value are
not available, investments are measured at

cost less impairment losses (see note 2(k)).
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. ETEEHEE (&)
(g) Fixed assets (90 BEEE

(i)  Fixed assets are stated in the balance sheet (y BETEEEZRKAREFITE
at cost less accumulated depreciation (R HaE20) RomBEEE (2K
(see note 2(i)) and impairment losses F20k)REEBEBERIIEE -
(see note 2(k)).

(i)  Subsequent expenditure relating to a fixed (i EBREREEERLETE IR
asset that has already been recognised is WAKF 2 RREE R HRAE A
added to the carrying amount of the asset BEmAREEE - A HEEE &
when it is probable that future economic EEAMBEERRAZEES
benefits, in excess of the originally assessed HEMAEEZREE- - FTA
standard of performance of the existing asset, H i E & Sz 1 39 50 A HA ) o
will flow to the Group. All other subsequent REZH -
expenditure is recognised as an expense in
the period in which it is incurred.

(ili)  Gains or losses arising from the retirement or (i HEXEZRABEEEEMELEZ
disposal of a fixed asset are determined as BRAGGHEMGFREEER
the difference between the estimated net ERABECEZEETE AN
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount EXEAE AR K= RN MHE
of the asset and are recognised in the income R e
statement on the date of retirement or
disposal.

(h) Leased assets (h)y HEEE

Leases of assets under which the lessee assumes

substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership

are classified as finance leases. Leases of assets

under which the lessor has not transferred all the

risks and benefits of ownership are classified as

operating leases.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(h) Leased assets (Continued)

(i)

Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets

under finance leases, the amounts
representing the fair value of the leased asset,
or if lower, the present value of the minimum
lease payments, of such assets are included
in fixed assets and the corresponding
liabilities, net of finance charges, are recorded
as obligations under finance leases.
Depreciation is provided at rates which write
off the cost of the assets in equal annual
amounts over the term of the relevant lease
or, where it is likely the Company or Group
will obtain ownership of the asset, the life of
the asset, as set out in note 2(g). Impairment
losses are accounted for in accordance with
the accounting policy as set out in note 2(k).
Finance charges implicit in the lease payments
are charged to the income statement over
the period of the leases so as to produce an
approximately constant periodic rate of
charge on the remaining balance of the
obligations for each accounting period.
Contingent rentals are written off as an
expense of the accounting period in which

they are incurred.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(h) Leased assets (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Assets held for use in operating leases

Where the Group leases out assets under
operating leases, the assets are included in
the balance sheet according to their nature
and, where applicable, are depreciated in
accordance with the Group’s depreciation
policies, as set out in note 2(g). Impairment
losses are accounted for in accordance with
the accounting policy as set out in note 2(k).
Revenue arising from operating leases is
recognised in accordance with the group’s
revenue recognition policies, as set out in
note 2(qg)(ix).

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets under
operating leases, payments made under the
leases are charged to the income statement
in equal instalments over the accounting
periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to
be derived from the leased asset. Lease
incentives received are recognised in the
income statement as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments made.
Contingent rentals are charged to the income
statement in the accounting period in which
they are incurred.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. FESTHEHE (&)
(i) Amortisation and depreciation of fixed assets (i) BEEEEBERITE
(i) Leasehold land and buildings are amortised () HMELHWREFIUNERER
on a straight line basis over the shorter of HEE_+tHEF(UABREER
lease terms and 25 years. ) B o
(i)  Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost (i) EMmETEEZITETRB®
of other fixed assets on the reducing balance BRI RUE DA B4 51 AT 60 A 6 B
basis over their estimated useful lives at the B FI1% 20 %1l 8 Ak 2 o
rate of 20% per annum.
(j). Intangible assets () EBEREE
(i) Purchased programme rights (i) BAZEEEGE

Costs, which comprises acquired programme
costs in respect of programming license
agreements for rights of presentation, is
capitalised and charged to the income
statement over the shorter of the license
period or over the estimated number of future
showings and the estimated useful lives.
Programme rights with a license period of
twelve months or less are classified as current
assets.

License fee prepaid for reproduction of multi-
media products are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment
losses (see note 2(k)). The license fee is
amortised on a straight line basis over the

license period.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()

(k)

Intangible assets (Continued)

(ii) Self-produced programmes

Self-produced programmes are stated at cost
less accumulated impairment losses (see note
2(k)). Cost comprises the production cost of
the programmes which consists of direct
expenditure and an appropriate portion of
production overheads. The production costs
of the self-produced programmes are charged
to the income statement upon the first
showing of the programmes.

Impairment of assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at each balance sheet date to identify
indications that the following assets may be
impaired or an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have decreased:

—  fixed assets;

— intangible assets;

— interests in subsidiaries and associates (except
for those accounted for at fair value under
notes 2(c) and (d); and

—  positive goodwill.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable

amount is estimated. An impairment loss is

recognised whenever the carrying amount of an

asset exceeds its recoverable amount.

Bt %5 3 5 M &

2. XESFEE @)

()

(k)

BEEE (F)

(i)

EHREHE

B R B AR AR E A R AR
BEE (RAT2(0k) 58 - A
BRMBZBEERA(BREEER
A REOBEEEER) - B
HEE CBIERARTIRE R &
A SRRk -

BEERME

EEREBEEEAEHAMEIRE
FAREE T EESR T HBIREN
R AEREERZREBETES
s &R

BRVEE

MEBARRBERE 2w (R
B2k AFEAEER
oM - R

W RERDRETR - BT EEZ
A EEE - NEEREEBEER
WElE5E  HemARERSE -



EEBX (KE)FRLF —SSILFEFH -5

Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(AR 3IE)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k) Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its net selling price and value in
use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of
time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. Where an asset does not generate
cash inflows largely independent of those
from other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of assets
that generates cash inflows independently

(i.e. a cash-generating unit).

Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount.

A reversal of impairment losses is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to the income
statement in the year in which the reversals

are recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(AR 3IE)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

V)

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and

net realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the first-in, first-out
method and comprises all costs of purchase, costs
of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing
the inventories to their present location and

condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of
those inventories is recognised as an expense in
the period in which the related revenue is
recognised. The amount of any write-down of
inventories to net realisable value and all losses of
inventories are recognised as an expense in the
period in which the write-down or loss occurs.
The amount of any reversal of any write-down of
inventories, arising from an increase in net
realisable value, is recognised as a reduction in the
amount of inventories recognised as an expense in

the period in which the reversal occurs.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(AR 3IE)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(m)

(n)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value, having
been within three months of maturity at
acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s
cash management are also included as a
component of cash and cash equivalents for the

purpose of the cash flow statement.

Employee benefits

(i)  Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
leave passage and the cost to the Group of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year
in which the associated services are rendered
by employees of the Group. Where payment
or settlement is deferred and the effect would
be material, these amounts are stated at their

present values.

(i)  Contributions to the Group's retirement
benefit schemes are recognised as an expense
in the income statement as incurred.

(iii)  When the Group grants employees options
to acquire shares of the Company at nil
consideration, no employee benefit cost or
obligation is recognised at the date of grant.
When the options are exercised, equity is
increased by the amount of the proceeds
received.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(AR 3IE)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(o) Income tax

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Income tax for the year comprises current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and
liabilities. Current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in the income statement except
to the extent that they relate to items
recognised directly in equity, in which case

they are recognised in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on
the taxable income for the year, using tax
rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date, and any adjustment to

tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
for financial reporting purposes and their tax
bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from

unused tax losses and unused tax credits.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(AR 3IE)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(o) Income tax (Continued)

(iii)

(Continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all
deferred tax liabilities, and all deferred tax
assets to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against
which the asset can be utilised, are
recognised. Future taxable profits that may
support the recognition of deferred tax arising
from deductible temporary differences include
those that will arise from the reversal of
existing taxable temporary differences,
provided those differences relate to the same
taxation authority and the same taxable entity,
and are expected to reverse either in the same
period as the expected reversal of the
deductible temporary differences or in periods
into which a tax loss arising from the deferred
tax asset can be carried back or forward. The
same criteria are adopted when determining
whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from unused tax
losses and credits, that it, those differences
are taken into account if they relate to the
same taxation authority and the same taxable
entity, and are expected to reverse in a period,
or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can
be utilised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(AR 3IE)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(o) Income tax (Continued)

(iii)

(Continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of
deferred tax assets and liabilities are those
temporary difference arising from goodwill
not deductible for tax purposes, negative
goodwill treated as deferred income, the
initial recognition of assets or liabilities that
affect neither accounting nor taxable profit
(provided they are not part of business
combination), and temporary differences
relating to investments in subsidiaries to the
extent that, in the case of taxable differences,
the Group controls the timing of the reversal
and it is probable that the differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in
the case of deductible differences, unless it

is probable that they will reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is
measured based on the expected manner of
realisation or settlement of the carrying
amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax
rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets and

liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of deferred tax asset is
reviewed at each balance sheet date and is
reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow the related tax benefit to
be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to
the extent that it becomes probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(AR 3IE)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(o) Income tax (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(Continued)

Additional income taxes that arise from the
distribution of dividends are recognised when
the liability to pay the related dividends is
recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax
balances, and movements therein, are
presented separately from each other and are
not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred
tax assets against deferred tax liabilities if,
and only if, the Company or the Group has
the legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and
the following additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and
liabilities, the Company or the Group
intends either to settle on a net basis,
or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and
liabilities, if they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority
on either:

— the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in
each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to
be settled or recovered, intend to
realise the current tax assets and
settle the current tax liabilities on
a net basis or realise and settled
simultaneously.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(AR 3IE)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(p)

(q)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Company or Group
has a legal or constructive obligation arising as a
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will
only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

Revenue recognition

Provided it is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the Group and the revenue and costs,
if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is

recognised in the income statement as follows:

(i)  Broadcasting advertising fee income is
recognised when the relevant advertisements

are broadcasted.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(AR 3IE)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(g) Revenue recognition (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

Revenue from sub-licensing of programme
rights is recognised upon delivery of the pre-
recorded audio visual products and other
materials for the programme rights to the
customers.

Sales of goods are recognised when goods
are delivered at the customers’ premises
which is taken to be the point in time when
the customer has accepted the goods and

the related risks and rewards of ownership.

Revenue from the production of television
the

production is completed and the master copy

programme is recognised when

has been delivered to the customers.

Sales of newspapers and magazines are
recognised when newspapers and magazines

are delivered and title has passed.

Advertising income is recognised on the
relevant publication date of the Group's

newspapers and magazines.

Revenue from internet website content sales
is recognised on a straight line basis over the
contract term if the revenue for the service is
fixed.

Services income are recognised when the

services are rendered.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(AR 3IE)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(g) Revenue recognition (Continued)

(r)

(s)

(ix) Rental income, including rental invoiced in
advance from machinery under operating
leases, is recognised on a straight line basis

over the term of the relevant lease.

(x) Interest income is accrued on a time-
apportioned basis by reference to the
principal outstanding and the rate applicable.

Bater transactions

Revenue from barter transaction are recognised at
fair value based on the fair value of the goods and
services received in the transaction.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange
rates ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet
date. Exchange gains and losses are dealt with in

the income statement.

The results of foreign enterprises are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the average exchange
rates for the year; balance sheet items are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the rates of
exchange ruling at the balance sheet date. The
resulting exchange differences are dealt with as a

movement in reserves.

On disposal of a foreign enterprise, the cumulative
amount of exchange differences which relate to
that foreign enterprise is included in the calculation
of the profit or loss on disposal.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(AR 3IE)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(t)

(u)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are expensed in the income
statement in the period in which they are incurred,
except to the extent that they are capitalised as
being directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to
get ready for its intended use or sale.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of
the cost of a qualifying asset commences when
expenditures for the asset are being incurred,
borrowing costs are being incurred and activities
that are necessary to prepare the asset for its
intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation
of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are

interrupted or complete.

Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements,
parties are considered to be related to the Group
if the Group has the ability, directly or indirectly,
to control the party or exercise significant influence
over the party in making financial and operating
decisions, or vice versa, or where the Group and
the party are subject to common control or
common significant influence. Related parties may

be individuals or other entities.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(AR 3IE)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(v)

Segment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the
Group that is engaged either in providing products
or services (business segment), or in providing
products or services within a particular economic
environment (geographical segment), which is
subject to risks and rewards that are different from

those of other segments.

In accordance with the Group’s internal financial
reporting, the Group has chosen business segment
information as the primary reporting format and
geographical segment information as the secondary
reporting format for the purposes of these financial
statements.

Segment revenue, expenses, results, assets and
liabilities include items directly attributable to a
segment as well as those that can be allocated on
a reasonable basis to that segment. For example,
segment assets may include inventories, trade
receivables and fixed assets. Segment revenue,
expenses, assets, and liabilities are determined
before intra-group balances and intra-group
transactions are eliminated as part of the
consolidation process, except to the extent that
such intra-group balances and transactions are
between group enterprises within a single segment.
Inter-segment pricing is based on similar terms as
those available to other external parties.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost
incurred during the period to acquire segment
assets (both tangible and intangible) that are
expected to be used for more than one period.

Unallocated items mainly comprise financial and

corporate assets, interest-bearing loans,

borrowings, corporate and financing expenses and
minority interests.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA H51I(E)

3.

RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
has issued a number of new and revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“new HKFRSs”) which are
effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1
January 2005.

The Group has not early adopted these new HKFRSs in
the financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2005. The Group has already commenced an assessment
of the impact of these new HKFRSs but is not yet in a
position to state whether these new HKFRSs would have
a significant impact on its results of operations and

financial position.
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Notes to the Financial Statements | Bf # ¥R 4 Kt &t
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AAE¥FIE)
4. TURNOVER 4. EXH
2005 2004
—EERF —ETWMEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Broadcasting business & #6375
— broadcasting advertising fee income — EBRESEBKRA — 38,243
— television programme — BHRE B RIEKRA
production income 24,669 23,882
— sub-licensing of programme rights — D IHETE 108 17,670
— advertisement production income — BEEEWRA — 1,045
— production facilities income — RER B A — 51
— consultancy fee income — BEEBKA — 47
24,777 80,938
Publishing business i i 2 75
— sales of newspapers and magazines — WERMTHEE — 45,078
— newspapers and magazines — WERMEFTESHA
advertising income — 33,361
— sales of multi-media products — HEBEEHEREE R 5,393 23,996
— internet website content sales — BEBRBLRNAHEE — 704
5,393 103,139
30,170 184,077
Included in broadcasting advertising fee income is HK$Nil BERESEBWABREREAN LHEAR
(2004: HK$4,639,000) and income from sub-licensing BT (ZEEME: E#4,639,0007T)
of programme rights is HK$Nil (2004: HK$1,177,000) in AR HE B B ERABK ST (ZEF
respect of barter transactions entered into during the e B #1,177,0000T) 2 A9 5 R

year. 2 .
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(VA ¥ 51/ ()

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION

Segment information is presented in respect of the
Group's business and geographical segments. Business
segment information is chosen as the primary reporting
format because this is more relevant to the Group’s
internal financial reporting.

Business segments

The Group comprises broadcasting and publishing
business segment.

REBE (KE)ARLT —SSHFEFEH |

5. DEER

PTRENBRASEEZXBRIBESES
5 e REBEBUNXRBOBEEMERTE
BERXATHRUERRYEANEE 2 AER
FABR AR -

X Pk
AEBBREBRRLRERSE -

E

Publishing Consolidated
R ey
2005 2004 2005 2004
“RREE _—TTWNHF —FBRIFf _—TTMF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
BEFT BETT BEFT BETFT

5,393 103,139 30,170 184,077

Results
Broadcasting
B

2005 2004
“EERE _TTMEE
HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFT  EETRH

Segment turnover AEHA
— External sales — HHNHE 24,777 80,938
Segment results PEEE (64,380) (60,734)

(22,609) (73,977) (86,989) (134,711)

Unallocated operating &2 B4 &
income and expenses WA RFX

(62,032) (105,238)

(149,021) (239,949)
(88) (1,526)

28,045 (33,336) 110,266 (15,437)

Loss from operations KEER
Finance costs BEKA
Net gain/(loss) arising on & R FABHA
disposals and EH B AR
deconsolidation of MEEz W/
subsidiaries (B#B) #8 82,221 17,899
Provision for irrecoverable [EUiE&GRA S E
amounts due from WELQRZ
unconsolidated A A] M FROA
subsidiaries el (85,018) —
Gain on deemed disposal 154 H & —HH B
of a subsidiary REZME — =
Provision for amounts ~ ENEE DA Z
due from associates TR
Share of results of GaR el NG
associates S
Taxation I
Minority interests LHRRF =
Loss attributable P 3 FE {5 12

to shareholders

(52,796) = (137,814) =

- 13,541 - 13,541
(1,870) =
(50) (4,490)
— (353)

1,539 17,168

(177,038) (231,046)
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Notes to the Financial Statements
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(AR 3IE)

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Balance sheet

Segment assets

Investments in
associates

Unallocated corporate

assets

Segment liabilities

Unallocated corporate
liabilities

Other information

Additions of fixed assets
Depreciation and amortisation
of fixed assets
Allowances for bad and
doubtful debts
Allowances for inventories
Amortisation of goodwill
Impairment loss recognised
in respect of goodwil
Impairment loss recognised
in respect of investments

in securities

Loss on disposal of fixed assets

Bt %5 3 5 M &

5. 2EER (8
EEAEXR
Broadcasting Publishing Consolidated
& & iR =RE
2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004
“BERF —TTNF -PTIF —TINF —TTRE _TINF
HK$’000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
BETFT EBEFIT BEFT EBEFT BETFT BETI
DEEE 46,959 109,535 55,241 55,278 102,200 164,813
BENRZIRE
— 50 — — — 50
AOBRGCEEE
51,388 55,897
153,588 220,760
var B 53,064 40,118 1,889 26,961 54,953 67,079
AoBREEERE
9,405 19,223
64,358 86,302
Broadcasting Publishing Unallocated Consolidated
R il FAE B4
2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004
“R%If ZTIMF -RREF CTTMF CPREF FTME CRERF CTIMA
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000 — HKS'000  HKS$'000 ~ HKS$'000
BETT  BETT  EETR  BETT  EETR BETT ABTT  BETR
BTAERE 2,226 2,026 79 1,676 - = 2,305 3,702
ErEENE
RER 2,388 7,636 3,171 14,069 - = 5,559 21,705
RERAE
20,330 7,079 792 728 1,500 42,467 2,622 50,274
GERE 5,138 1,497 8,693 2,060 - = 13,831 3,557
okt 3= 2,749 6,237 2,38 1,435 - — 5,131 7,672
BEZERR
BEEE 13,748 19,180 8,686 9,000 - = 22,434 28,180
BEREZE
BIREEE
7,131 = - = 44,833 37,143 51,964 37,743
HEETEELER 4,355 1,139 90 927 - = 4,445 2,066
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5. 2FEH (H)
Geographical segments i E D HE
The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s TEtEY BRI 2 R - Rt TSR
revenue by geographical market, irrespective of the origin Sl 2 AEBNREHTRINWMT -
of the goods/services:
2005 2004
—EERRF —ETEE
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T
By geographical market: RitEm5E D
Hong Kong BB 48 80,405
Mainland China (“PRC") R KR ([ ) 30,122 59,836
Taiwan =0 — 43,836
30,170 184,077
The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of REEMEHE S 2o EEAERAERE
segment assets and additions to fixed assets, by the EEERABEZDONMOT :
geographical area in which the assets are located:
Carrying amount
of segment assets Additions to fixed assets
TREEREME BEEERE
2005 2004 2005 2004
—22ARF —ZTWEF —EEIF —ZTWEF
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BEFT BETFT BT BETT

Hong Kong BB 108,594 76,781 1,182 1,657
PRC ey 44,743 105,540 1,123 1,642
Taiwan = 251 35,612 — 403
Macau SE P — 2,827 — —

153,588 220,760 2,305 3,702
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Notes to the Financial Statements | B %5 3% & Mf %
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(A% 5E)
6. OTHER REVENUE AND NET INCOME 6. HftzmRWAFE
2005 2004
—ZERF —TTE
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Other revenue H fth Uy 2=
Interest income on bank deposits RITERZ M EWA 33 300
Others HAb 43 3,755
76 4,055
Other net (loss)/income Hih (B8) WA FEE
Loss on disposal of fixed assets HERTEEEZER (4,445) (2,066)
Net realised and unrealised gains BEERAMEFZEER
on trading and other securities RAREBR W FE -
carried at fair value b2 /NS L[| 487 459
(3,958) (1,607)
7. ALLOWANCES FOR BAD AND DOUBTFUL DEBTS 7. REREME

During the year, the directors of the Company assessed
the financial position of the debtors and HK$22,622,000
(2004: HK$50,274,000) has been identified as doubtful
debts and recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

FRN - ARAIESFGHES A 2R
S MAB#22,622,0007C (ZEZTPF : B
#50,274,00070) E#H A ARE - WS
W KRR o
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B 75 3R 5 B =
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(VA ¥ 51/ ()
8. LOSS FROM ORDINARY ACTIVITIES BEFORE 8.
TAXATION

Loss from ordinary activities before taxation is arrived at

after charging/(crediting):

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Finance costs
Interest on bank borrowings
wholly repayable within five years
Interest on other borrowings
wholly repayable within five years
Finance charges on obligations
under finance leases

Staff costs (including directors’
remuneration)

Contributions to defined
contribution plans

Salaries, wages and other benefits

Net (gain)/loss arising on disposals
and deconsolidation of subsidiaries

(Gain)/loss on disposals of subsidiaries

Loss on disposals of unconsolidated
subsidiary

Gain on deconsolidation of subsidiaries

Other items
Cost of purchased programme rights
included in cost of sales
Auditors’ remuneration
— current year
— underprovision in prior year
Depreciation and amortisation
of fixed assets
— assets held under finance leases
— other assets
Operating lease charges in respect
of property rentals: minimum
lease payments

ﬁﬂﬁ%ﬂ
2F£¢W%%E%Z
HEENE
%éﬂ%%ﬁz
BEEHR

ETRAN (BREEEHS)
ERAH NG 8 2 7R

e IENREMERN

HERTBREHENBELF
FEEZ (WR) HEEHE
HEMBLRZ Wa) B
HEFGAFTEMB AT
ZER
THEGEATEMBAR s

Hit® A
FFAHERARNZBA
£ B R R AN

% BLAD B &
— KEE
—BEFERBETR
B E & 2 i & & i

— REREHERECEE
— HEMEE
MEZKEHEEN

B REHES

BREAMAEXBER

—EZhESFE VA

BRERAEEEBBRENR GrA) :

2005 2004
—EEREF —EETF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BT T
64 207

— 778

24 541

88 1,526

557 2,690
11,729 91,899
12,286 94,589
(416) 15,437
4,265 —
(114,115) —
(110,266) 15,437
1,808 41,873
400 1,030

104 —

97 11,263
5,462 10,442
2,237 6,460
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Notes to the Financial Statements | B %5 3% & Mf %

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(A% 5E)

9. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME 9. HEWBRAZBH
STATEMENT
(@) Income tax in the consolidated income statement (a) FHREWRZERANZAEHIE !

represents:

2005 2004
—¥THEF -—TIWEF
HK$'000 HK$°000

BEFT BT IT

Current tax — Provision for Taiwan EDHiFi1E — A B FAEH

income tax B’E
Tax for the year NEZFIA — 353
No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been F PR 2N 5= B 7 4F P I 48 EE A (AT 7B
made in the financial statements as the Group did BB RS 2 YA+ H I E&  BF
not derive any income subject to Hong Kong profits BMEELBEBFSTERE -

tax during the year.

No provision for Taiwan and PRC income tax have R A& B R AN F [E W &b 5T SR
been provided for in the financial statements as B (ZETEF © R B2
the Group has no estimated assessable profits for BARIERAEZHERBRITHER
the year (2004: Taxation for subsidiaries established ) W ERYBREIEL B E
in Taiwan is charged at the appropriate current KA E SR -

rate of taxation ruling in the Taiwan).
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Notes to the Financial Statements | Bt % R 45 Ff 5%
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(A% 5E)
INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME 9. BEWBRAZFMEBHR (&)
STATEMENT (Continued)
(b)  Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting (b) BELZLHBERBEAMESFE 2B
loss at applicable tax rates: BZHERIT
2005 2004
—EEIF —TTME
HK$'000 % HK$'000 %
Loss before taxation B 7% A1 & 18 (178,577) (247,861)
Notional tax on loss before PRt A B 1R 2
tax, calculated at the ZERIE BB
rates applicable to BIAR AR R
profits in the tax jurisdictions i A 2 8 B
concerned HEE (31,251) (17.5) (43,376) (17.5)
Tax effect of non-deductible DEE 5
expenses Mg E 6,136 3.4 36,549 14.8
Tax effect of non-taxable BARTE 2
revenue M2 (38) — (2,422) (1.0)
Tax effect of unused tax losses  RFER K E) AT E
and other deferred tax assets BEEEMEE
not recognised MBREZRBEZE 27,900 15.6 8,710 3.5
Tax effect of share of the o {h B & D R R R
associates’ tax losses HIABEZ
not recognised MBTE 9 — 786 0.3
Effect of different tax rates Hf AERE R TR
in other jurisdictions MRz E (60) — 106 —
Others Hi (2,696) (1.5) — —
Actual tax expenses ERHIEX — — 353 0.1
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(VA ¥ 51/ ()

10. DIRECTORS" REMUNERATION 10. EEME

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section
161 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as

follows:
Fees e
Salaries and other emoluments & & E b Fr i

Retirement scheme contributions

Included in the directors’ remuneration were fees of
HK$348,000 (2004: HK$330,000) payable to the
independent non-executive directors during the year.

In addition, a director was granted options to subscribe
for shares in the Company. Details of the share options
granted and outstanding in respect of this director as at
31 March 2005 are disclosed in note 31 below and the
directors’ report.

The remuneration of the directors is within the following
bands:

BIRFTEIHEF

RIBEREQFTHEDN FE 16 1EHE E 2= M
LW

2005 2004
—sBrF —ZETNF
HK$'000 HK$°000
BT T BT T
348 330
2,587 5,213

29 36

2,964 5,579

FRNENBIFENTEET 2N BE
348,0007C (ZZZTPU 4 : % #330,0007T)
TAZEEME o

goh - —REERRBREAZEARRA
Bfp - ZBREER _TTRF=A=+—
BZEEERERTEZEREFERT
XMEBIREZTEMEENE -

EEZMENTFATEE :

No. of directors

BEEAY
2005 2004
—EERF —ETNF
HK$Nil — HK$ 1,000,000 BB E r 2 51,000,000 12 11
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 75 #51,000,0017T & 78 ¥ 1,500,0007T — 1
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 752,000,001 T 2 7 #2,500,0007T — 1
12 13

There was no amount paid during the both years to the
directors in connection with their retirement from
employment with the Group or inducement to join. There
was no any arrangement under which a director waived
or agreed to waive any remuneration during the both
years.

RERMEFER  NEBEHEREE]
R INARNEE M AEMRFRIE - R L
AMEFER  BEETANEETREXRE
PRE AT AR % B 2 22 5 o
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11. INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 11. BaH AL
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, hE&ERHFATH HE(ZEZTMF M
four (2004 four) are directors whose emoluments are Z)EEE  EMEERHEI10HE - B
disclosed in note 10. The aggregate of the emoluments — % (ZETHF  —R) AT 2MeEE
in respect of the other one (2004: one) individual are as J{U N
follows:
2005 2004
—ZERF —EENEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Salaries and other emoluments & & E fib i 397 720
Retirement scheme contributions RONGET S 3R 12 12
409 732
The emoluments of the remaining one (2004: one) HEep—Z (ZTETNF . —R)mReH AL
individual with the highest emoluments are within the ZHENFUATHE :
following band:
No. of individuals
AE
2005 2004
—EERF —ZETNNF
HK$Nil — HK$1,000,000 75 ¥ = Jr 2 4 % 1,000,0007T 1 1
12. LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS 12. RREGER
The consolidated loss attributable to shareholders R ELMGEBEEREEBEEBEK
includes a loss of HK$174,526,000 (2004: 174,526,000 (ZZEZT W F | B K
HK$232,762,000) which has been dealt with in the 232,762,0007T) * % EEBE R AR Al 2Bt

financial statements of the Company. EMERE ©
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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13.

14.

DISTRIBUTION

During the year ended 31 March 2004, the Board of
Directors had distributed 351,257,794 shares of
Leadership Publishing Group Limited (“Leadership
Publishing”) both directly and indirectly held by the
Company to all shareholders of the Company. Particulars
of the distribution in specie of shares of Leadership
Publishing were set out in the Company’s circular dated
23 October 2003.

LOSS PER SHARE

(a) Basic loss per share

The calculation of basic loss per share is based on
the Group’s loss attributable to shareholders of
HK$177,038,000 (2004: HK$231,046,000) and the
weighted average of 17,792,555,629 ordinary
shares (2004: 13,766,154,000 ordinary shares) in
issue during the year.

(b) Diluted loss per share

No diluted loss per share has been presented
because the exercise price of the Company’s
outstanding share options was higher than the
average market price per share for both years and
the exercise of the other potential ordinary shares

would result in a reduction in loss per share.

Bt %5 3 5 M &

13.

14.

7K

REBE-_ZENF=-A=1+—BULEE
N EESERARAEZEBRESREAR
AEENEERERNBEREELRERS
PR~ AE ([BRARHERE]) 2 351,257,794/ iR
m e LEMARDIRBEREERD ZF1B
BENARFTR—_ETE=F+A=-_+=87
BZBEMA o

BRER

(a) BEREXER

BREABBIBREBEASEE ZRFE
151878 177,038,0007T (— B Y
& . B ¥ 231,046,00070) K F R
BT TEBRMNETFH K
17,792,555,62908 @Ak (ZFTZT M
4 1 13,766,154,00008 LBA%) 5t & o

(b) BREEER

HRARBARITEBREZTEES
REBORZMEFE 2ERFHEM
B mIEEMEEETBRSESE
RERRD - B E 25 FREEE

8-
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(A% 5E)
15. FIXED ASSETS 15. BEEE
The Group P-4
Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures
land and Plant and office
buildings Leasehold and equipment Motor
fiE1%  improvements equipment  &fil  £ER vehicles Total
kEF HENEEE EEVET | PAERSE RE Eh
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
BETT AETT BETT BETT AETT BETT
Cost; HA
At 1 April 2004 RZZEMEMA-H 5,706 6,971 24,263 14,539 5,494 56,973
Additions NE
— through acquisition subsidiaries — BEBRKEHELH - 5,948 16,809 882 = 23,639
— through transfer from —EREEFRR
unconsolidated subsidiaries TEHELF - - — 4,254 3,295 7,549
— others — Hfh - - 1,145 - 1,160 2,305
Disposals &
— through disposal of subsidiaries — EBHENBAA - (187) (12,678) (5,940) (3,295) (22,100)
— through disposal of — ERNERGR
unconsoldiated subsidiary HENBAR - - (2,141) (1,177) (94) (3412)
— through deconsolidation — BRTAEA
of subsidiaries SENERA - (2,584) - (4,254) (3,295) (10,133)
— others —Hft = = (6,390) (3,863) (1,550) (11,803)
— At 31 March 2005 —RNZEERE
ZAZ1-H 5,706 10,148 21,008 4,441 1,715 43,018
Aggregate depreciation: BIE
At 1 April 2004 R-ZEMEMA—A 3,951 4,222 12,176 7,189 2,124 29,662
Through acquisition FARENERT
of subsidiaries — 198 560 31 — 789
Through transfer from FRERFGAE
unconsolidated subsidiaries HEAH - - — 2,142 1,116 3,258
Charge for the year REEX M 59 1,356 2,834 840 470 5,559
Written back on disposals HERER
— through disposals of subsidiaries — ABHENELF - (83) (6,847) (3.213) (1374) (11,517)
— through disposal of — ERNEFRR
unconsoldiated subsidiary R - - (978) (429) (10) (1,417)
— through deconsolidation — BANELE
of subsidiaries HEHEAR - (2,344) = (2,14 (1,116) (5,602)
— others — Hih - - (3.717) 2,17 (727) (6,616)
At 31 March 2005 RZETRE=R
=t-H 4,010 3,349 4,028 2,246 483 14,116
Net book value: BEFE
At 31 March 2005 R_Z2HE=f
=t-H 1,696 6,799 16,980 2,195 1,232 28,902
At 31 March 2004 RZZEMF=A

=t-H 1,755 2,749 12,087 7,350 3,370 21311
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B 7% ¥ o B =
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(VA ¥ 51/ ()
15. FIXED ASSETS (Continued) 15. BIE&EE (8)
Notes: Bzt
(@) At 31 March 2005, the leasehold land and buildings are @ R-TEAFE=-A=+—H BELHE
situated in Hong Kong and are held under medium-term BRI AEE TR REALNES o
leases.
(b) The Group leases a motor vehicle (2004: copying b) FEERER-"ZEAERA(CEEN
machine) under a finance lease expiring on May 2009 . —EERANA)ES T mARE Y

(2004: April 2005).

At 31 March 2005, the net book value of the motor
vehicle (2004: office equipment) held under the finance
lease of the Group was HK$1,063,000 (2004:

HK$141,000).

16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

At 1 April
Programme rights acquired
Deconsolidation of subsidiaries
Disposal of unconsolidated subsidiary
Disposals of a subsidiary
Charged to the consolidated

income statement

At 31 March

Carrying amount analysed for
reporting purposes as:
Non-current

Intangible assets represents purchased programme rights.
The amortisation charged for the year is included in

BAE(ZZTWE : ZHK) -

16. BILEE

R-EZRF=A=+—H
ERAEZRE(ZETME .
ZBREEE A 1,063,000 (Z T[T
F : HH141,0007T) ©

CIREREH

PWRERME)

The Group
REH
2005 2004
—EZERE —EETF
HK$°000 HK$°000
BT T BT
RO H—H 16,658 32,754
BB G B — 28,686
THEETERBA (4,700) —
HEFELGEER #Bﬁﬁ“ (10,150) —
HE—HHEBA — (2,909)
= %%éﬂ&zﬁi%?ﬂﬁ%
(1,808) (41,873)
R=A=+—H — 16,658
BERMELRZREED T !
JE 7 B — 16,658

X HETARE

“Cost of sales” in the consolidated income statement.

BNEERBAGBEERE KAFE2H#
WaRZ [HEKA] -
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line basis over the estimated useful life of 10 years. The
amortisation of goodwill for the year is included in the
consolidated income statement.

Notes to the Financial Statements | B %5 3% & Mf %
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(A E#5IE)
17. GOODWILL 17. B8
Positive
goodwill
NSk
HK$’000
BT T
Cost: RS
At 1 April 2004 RZZEZTWMEMA—HR 87,909
Additions through acquisition of a subsidiary FRBERBARRE 33,779
Disposals &
— through disposal of unconsolidated subsidiary — EEHEFGEETENBRR (34,873)
— through deconsolidation of subsidiaries — BB TBEATENE AR (15,734)
At 31 March 2005 RZEZERF=HA=+—H 71,081
Accumulated amortisation and impairment losses: AT BERREEE :
At 1 April 2004 RZZEZTWMEMA—H 49,995
Written back on disposals i £ 5 38
— through disposal of unconsolidated subsidiary — BERLEFEETENBERF (25,283)
— through deconsolidation of subsidiaries — BB TBERATENE AR (13,567)
Impairment loss for the year 7N 4F [ R (B BT 18 22,434
Amortisation for the year NS 5,131
At 31 March 2005 R-ZEZRFE=A=+—H 38,710
Carrying amount: FREE :
At 31 March 2005 RZEZERF=A=+—H 32,371
At 31 March 2004 RZEZNMF=A=+—H 37,914
Positive goodwill is recognised as expense on a straight- EEENESREGAUERFTFHTF

BRAARXEL - AFEZBBHEENARS

sk e
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(A% 5E)
18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 18. RMIB AR 2=
The Company
KA F
2005 2004
—2TEE -—TTWE
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T B F T
Unlisted shares, at cost ELETIMG - BRA 55,484 478
Amounts due from subsidiaries NGRS 410,491 162,164
Amounts due to subsidiaries NI ENGIE (31,520) (31,882)
434,455 130,760
Less: Impairment loss B R 1R (380,445) =
54,010 130,760
In the opinion of the Company’s directors, the amounts RAREERE - B ERH B R AR
due from/to subsidiaries are unsecured, non-interest BHERE BRI AEHER —FNR
bearing and are not expected to be settled within one BE -
year.
The following list contains only the particulars of TREHFBHAEER_ZEZTRF=A=
subsidiaries which principally affected the result, assets T—HBZHEE BEEXEEBEREETE
or liabilities of the Group at 31 March 2005. The class ZHBAGFE - BRBHEHBIA - IR
of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated. All of MBRREEK FIEZEMBEARAR
these are controlled subsidiaries as defined under note XEFIKE AR (ExEAME2(0) LB
2(c) and have been consolidated in the Group’s financial REsTARNEB 2B BERE -

statements.
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18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 18. KRB AT 2% (&)

Proportion of Issued and

ownership interest fully paid

BRELS ordinary

Place of Group's Held share capital/

incorporation effective by the Held by registered capital
and operation holding ~ Company subsidiaries ERTRHRZ  Principal

Name of company i1 B L R HASE  HAAR M i EERKRA/  activity

DNEER ok ERKE BE  REAKE EIMEA TEEE

FRttERXEER People’s Republic 100% — 100% RMB1,000,000  Publication
ARAR ((RXEE]) of China ("PRC") AR¥1,000,000 AR
(Note 2) (Kfit2) mEARLME

(T E])

Evergain Properties Limited Hong Kong 100% = 100% HK$10,000  Property holding

KHNEBRAT 5 A¥10000T  HEDF

Mega Bonus Investments Limited ~ Hong Kong 100% 100% — HK$2  Investment holding

MEREFRAT &R A¥IT  REER

Profit Trade Developments Limited British Virgin 100% = 100% US$T  Investment holding
("Profit Trade”) Islands %1 REER

("BVI")/Taiwan
XBRLES/

Shanghai New Culture TV And PRC 48% — 43% RMB5,000,000  Production of television
Radio Making Co., Ltd. el AR#5,000,00070 programmes and sales
(Note 1) of multi-media products

FERXIEERERESE ERBARER
BRAR (A1) HESRBEM

STR Media Limited BVI/Hong Kong 80% = 80% US$100  Investment holding

EERLURB/BH 1005 REZRK

Sun Television Cybernetworks BVI/Hong Kong 100% — 100% US$1  Provision and sale

Developments Limited RERUBE/BA E3 of programmes

REERHERE
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Notes to the Financial Statements
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(AAE¥FIE)
18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 18. RMBRE 2= (8)
Proportion of Issued and
ownership interest fully paid
BRELS ordinary
Place of Group's Held share capital/
incorporation effective by the Held by registered capital
and operation holding ~ Company subsidiaries ERTRHRZ  Principal
Name of company i1 B L R HASE  HAAR M i EERKRA/  activity
ARER B BEBREE 58  AAkA ZMER FEEH
Sun Television New Media Limited BVI/Hong Kong 100% — 100% US$1  Boardband development
RBRUHEE/BA 1Zr REEERHB
Sun Television Group Limited BVI/Hong Kong 100% 100% = US$1,000  Investment holding
RERABB/BR 100057 REZR
Tianjin City Hai Jin Audio-Video  PRC 100% — 100% RMB1,000,000 ~ Wholesale and retail
Distribution Co., Ltd. f AR #1,000,0007T of audio-video products
("Hai Jin") (Note 2) WELESEYEEM
REMBESGENT
BRAR(NFE]) (Hi2)
Tidetime Future Optical Media Hong Kong/PRC 100% — 100% HK$10,000  Production and sales
Technology Limited B/ HE 710,000 of multi-media products
REENKBERERAR BERHEZRERED
Notes: K i -
(1)  Registered under the laws of the PRC as sino-foreign (1) WBEFEEFIZMRRIIEERE -
equity joint venture.
(2)  The equity interest is held by individual nominees on (2) BEABRAEZTIAHBENATEARREAR
behalf of the Company. RARFAE -
R [EZE and Hai Jin registered under the laws of the "X EEREEDBREFBEIZRAR
PRC as limited liability Company and owned legally by REERA  WHABEBEALTEEZRFE -
PRC nationals. Due to the various agreements in place, RRREERA KN ZEBZ AR
in the opinion of the directors of the Company, the AIEHRELECKERMBHRRERE
Company has effective control over the operational and BRyEdlE  MzEeETEAEESA 2K
financial policies of these enterprises and therefore these BHHRHEIERQARZHMBAR -
enterprises have been included as subsidiaries of the
Company since their date of acquisition.
None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities RERNIFRE  SHBARMEEEE

outstanding during the year or at the end of the year.

MREEZEHES
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Notes to the Financial Statements | B %5 3% & Mf %
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(A E#5IE)
19. INTERESTS IN UNCONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES 19. RIGEFEHBARZESR
The Group
rEH
2005 2004
—EERF —ETME
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T B F T
Share of net assets/(liabilities) DHEE/ (AR FE — —
Amounts due from unconsolidated W SELR & FT E KT B
subsidiaries UNGIF L] 143,801 —
Amounts due to unconsolidated EEEGRERTE
subsidiaries BB A 5] 58 (5,987) =
137,814 —
Less: Provision for irrecoverable amounts JB ¢ 7N A] Y [B] SR8 £ 15 (137,814) =
(a) Unconsolidated Subsidiaries (a) EHZETEMBEAF
At 31 March 2005, details of the Unconsolidated R-ZTEERF=HA=+—8 ¥&EE
Subsidiaries are as follows: STENBRARZFHBOT ¢
Proportion of Issued and
ownership interest fully paid
REELH ordinary
Place of Group's Held share capital/
incorporation effective by the Held by registered capital
and operation holding ~ Company subsidiaries ERTRARZ  Principal
Name of company 1A B L HASE  HEARH i it ZERKRA,/  activity
INGES mE BEREE 58 DAAEE SMER FEBEE
IRAGEEEERDA PRC 100% — 100% RMB1,000,000  Investment holding
HE ARE1000000 HREZR
TRG At EES PRC 100% = 100% US$500,000  Provision of advertising
BRAA s 500,000% 7T agency services

REEERERS



'8 Tidetime Sun (Group) Limited Annual Report 2005
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA H51I(E)

19. INTERESTS IN UNCONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

(a) Unconsolidated Subsidiaries (Continued)

Place of
incorporation
and operation

Name of company FMALR

NGES BEhYy

BN e 47 15 68 PRC
BERAF (Note 1) mE
(Hfzt1)

Beijing Jingwen PRC

Multi-media Education
Company Limited
("Jingwen Education”)
(Note 2)

IRRXSEEHE
BRAR(TRXAE])
(Hfit2)

Billion Idea Advertising Hong Kong
Limited BE
EREEERAA

SilkOnNet.com Hong Kong
Company Limited B
ENERHRERAA

Sun Century Programs Hong Kong
Production & B
Distribution Group
Limited

BrEEFRNERT
SEARRA

Sun Enterprise Marketing  Hong Kong
Limited Y
BAXEREERAA

Bt %5 3 5 M &

(a)

Proportion of

ownership interest

BAELA

Group's Held
effective by the Held by
holding ~ Company subsidiaries
HEAEE @HARH L
EREE BE  AEAKAE
90% — 90%
100% — 70%
100% = 100%
60% — 60%
100% — 100%
100% — 100%

Issued and

fully paid
ordinary

share capital/
registered capital
BRATRMRE
ZERRE/
AMEX

US$3,300,000
3,300,000% 7.

RMB2,000,000
A% 2,000,007

HK$ 1,000
1,000

HK$100,000
7 1100,0007T

HK$2
AET

HKS2
BRI

19. RIZRETENBLR 2 (8)

FEAFENBAR (&)

Principal
activity

TEEH

Production of digital
transmissions and
multi-media
development services

BESEERR
SBBERRE

Distribution and sales of
licensed educational
products

PERHEENHEER

Investment holding

RAER

Investment holding

RAZK

Dormant
EmESE

Dormant
TRESX



Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA H51I(E)

19. INTERESTS IN UNCONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)
(a) Unconsolidated Subsidiaries (Continued) (a)
Proportion of
ownership interest
BAELA
Place of Group's Held
incorporation effective by the Held by
and operation holding  Company subsidiaries
Name of company aE 1B L R HARE HALF H
nAER gepy BEREE BE  QAEAEA
Sun Entertainment BVI 100% = 100%
Television Limited RERUES
BARETRERAT
Sun Entertainment Hong Kong 100% = 100%
Television (Hong Kong) &%
Limited
BAREER (BE) ARAT
Sun International BVI 100% = 100%
Marketing & RBRRIEE
Distribution Limited
Sun Nominees Limited Hong Kong 100% — 100%
BE
Sun Publishing Holdings ~ BVI/PRC 100% 100% —
Limited AERLBR/TE
BrLRERER DA
Sun Television Marketing ~ Hong Kong 100% = 100%
& Sales Limited Bk
B Xem5E%
ARAF
Notes:
(1) Registered under the laws of the PRC as sino-
foreign equity joint venture.
(2)  Jingwen Education is registered under the laws of

the PRC as limited liability Company and owned
legally by PRC nationals. The equity interest is held
by these PRC nationals on behalf of the Company.

EEBX (KE)RFRLF —SSIAFEFH LU

Bt %5 3 5 M &

19. RIZREFTENBRAR 2 (8)

FEEERB LT (42)
Issued and
fully paid
ordinary
share capital/
registered capital
ERTRHZ  Principal
EERBRA,  activity
SMER FEBEE
US$1  Investment holding
1£n  REZR
HK§2  Dormant
BEr EEEE
US$1  Investment holding
121 BREEZR
HK$2  Dormant
BT EEEE
US$T  Investment holding
%1 REZR
HK§2  Dormant
BT EEEE
Wit -
(1) WRERPREOFMAEFINEGED
=,
(2) REXHBEDIBEBEFRBEGFMAR

REMERQAE  WHPEEALAE
FEZHEBEARE - FRAKREE
BmYAZEREBALTRER AR
5o
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(AR 3IE)

19. INTERESTS IN UNCONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

(a)

Unconsolidated Subsidiaries (Continued)

As the Group has disposed of the Unconsolidated
Subsidiaries subsequent to the balance sheet date,
the Group has been unable to exercise its rights as
a controlling shareholder of the Unconsolidated
Subsidiaries and unable to obtain any financial
information of the Unconsolidated Subsidiaries for
the year ended 31 March 2005, the directors
considered that for accounting purpose the
should be
deconsolidated from the consolidated financial

Unconsolidated Subsidiaries
statements with effect from 1 April 2004. A gain
arising on deconsolidation of subsidiaries and
provision for irrecoverable amounts due from
unconsoldiated subsidiaries in the consolidated
income statement
HK$114,115,000

respectively.

were approximately

and HK$137,814,000,

The directors of the Company believe that the
Group has no other material obligations or
commitments in the Unconsolidated Subsidiaries
that require either adjustments to or disclosure in

these financial statements.

Bt %5 3 5 M &

19. RIZRETENBLR 2 (8)

(a)

FEREHENBAR (A)

HRASEEREERREEHGS
AEMBLAR  NEBEEEAFES
FEMBARZERERR S DITRE
A - TERERIFRAENB A

AHE_TERAF=-A=1+—HLF
BEZEATBEN HEZRS 5
BFME  FEEFENER /,\E
—ZETENFENA-HETBHEAFTA
RAEMBHRER - KAKRERATE
RAFTHEIFRAENB AR 2 Wk
REYSEHRA T ERB AR Z TR
B XREBEEDNDODREE
114,115,0007T 49 % # 137,814,000

JG ©

RAREZHE  AEBWEFHEE
BRATENBAR ZEMERE FK
AEAELAESIR AT BRE R IE
%R o
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(AR 3IE)

19. INTERESTS IN UNCONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

(b)

SECC

Pursuant to a conditional agreement dated 30
December 2003 (the “Agreement”) entered into
between Profit Trade, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, and Ms. Huang Ming Fen (“Ms.
Huang”), Profit Trade disposed of 40% interest in
SECC, a 60% owned subsidiary of the Company
at 1 April 2004,
HK$10,000,000. The completion date of such
disposal was 30 September 2004. After that date,
the Company was unable to exercise control over

at the consideration of

the financial and operating decisions of SECC, and
the Group was also not able to access their books
and records together with the supporting
documents for the year ended 31 March 2005.
Accordingly, SECC was deconsolidated from the
consolidated financial statements with effect from
1 April 2004 and was accounted for as an
investment available-for-sale and stated in the
consolidated balance sheet under investments in
securities at 31 March 2005 at HK$1,000. The loss
on disposal of 40% interest in SECC and
impairment loss recognised in respect of 20%
interest in SECC in the consolidated income
statement was approximately HK$4,265,000 and

HK$7,131,000, respectively.

Bt %5 3 5 M &

19.

RIGEFENBLR 2 EE (8)

(b)

HERE

BERNF—HE2ENRB A A HE

RuLt([BExLt))R=ZTZE=F+=
A=+BiTzzB &G HHE([1H
) AEE A EAE 10,000,000
THEARARR-_ZZTWNFEN A —H
HEO%ZH BRI HERE Y
A0%HEz - ZHEZTEKABAE-T
TMENA=1H - %B#%E AR
ORI E R IRGE 2 WS RS R R AT
EEsE MASENEEEHNRSE
HE-_TZRAF=-A=1T—RHLFE
Z AR ER 4D 8 DA R 24 X o B I -
BEREG_ZTNFHN/—BEDR

BIREFTABRAMIERERN - WARR
PIMER B ERE RRZTTHEF
A=+ RAZBRABEEABRIIE
BHILEHEE,0007T © A KER
R EFERLI0%ER 2 BB RE
BIRE0% Em < ERRABEEES
B 4 & B B 4,265,0007T K B
7,131,0007T °
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20.

Share of net assets

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

The following list contains only the particulars of

associates, all of which are unlisted corporate entities,

which principally affected the results or assets of the

Group at 31 March 2005.

Name of Company

NRAEH

Sun Satellite Television
Company Limited
("Sun Satellite”)

BREEERER DA
(EHREE])

Sun Television
Cybernetworks
Enterprise Limited
("Sun Enterprise”)

BAXEBREREE

BRAB ([ XE])

Form of
business
structure
3
2R

Incorporated

il v

Incorporated

A X 32

B 75 3R 5 B =
20.
DIEBEFE
Place of
incorporation/
operations
EMRIL
RewM
Group’s
effective
interest
rEEZ
BN #z
Hong Kong 30%
BB
Hong Kong 30%
A

N T OLrE £
The Group
AEE

2005 2004

—ETHE —TTNF

HK$'000 HK$°000

BT BT T

— 50

TREFEAEHAKER _FTTRF=-A=
T HEZEXEREEBRIBZZEZHREZ
RAEFHE  MARSMERRYR/IELD

ThEREE-

Proportion of

ownership Principal
interest activity
BERELLA TEEH
held by held by
the the
Company  Subsidiaries
HAEARE] HHEERA]
HE HE
= 30% Provision of
satellite
television
programmes
REBEER
£ B
— 30% Management
services
BERB
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Notes to the Financial Statements | Bf #& R & M &
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(A% 5E)
21. INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES 21. BHERE
Trading securities Other securities Total
BERS EfhE% @t
2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004
“ER1E —TEME k- 3 %:2 —TEME k- 5§ —EIME
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT AT BETT BETT BETT EETT
The Group p:y-{ |
Equity securities hAEs
Listed in Hong Kong REELD 115 1,055 - = 115 1,055
Listed in the United States REFZERE
of America (Note) L (W) - - 1 19,060 1 19,060
Unlisted L - - 1 2,047 1 2,247
Unlisted debt securities FLMEBRES - - 1 31,200 1 31,200
115 1,055 3 52,507 18 53,562
Market values of listed securities 7124 2 T fE 115 1,055 126,062 132,600 126,177 133,655
Carrying amount analysed for ~ BERMELZ
feporting purposes as: BREBAN :
Current ik 115 1,055 - 5,446 15 6,501
Non-current EiE) - - 3 47,061 3 47,061
115 1,055 3 52,507 18 53,562
The Company NG
Equity securities hAEs
Listed in Hong Kong RE& LT 115 1,055 - - 115 1,055
Listed in the United States of ~ RENBARE
America (Note) L (frzt) - - 1 2,186 1 2,186
115 1,055 1 2,186 116 3,241
Market values of listed securities  EiZ %2 115 1,055 15,210 15,210 15,325 16,265
Carrying amount analysed for ~ BERMELZ
feporting purposes as: REBAN :
Current ik 115 1,055 - — 15 1,055
Non-current EiE) - - 1 2,186 1 2,186

115 1,055 1 2,186 116 3,241
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B 7% ¥ o B =
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AAE¥FIE)
21. INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES (Continued) 21. BHRE (B)
Note: i &t
The amount represents the Group’s and the Company's Z R T HEAN & B R AN A AR Asia Premium
investment in Asia Premium Television Group, Inc. (“ASTV"), a Television Group, Inc. ([ASTV]) (322 R Jh R
company incorporated in the State of Nevada of the United EFBERBEAEEMEMB L - ERHMNE
States of America with its shares traded on a stock exchange ﬂi/\m IEAFRSGMEHREE) REES 5
system in the United States of America, with a carrying amount BB 13,636,000 (ZZTTMF : BH
of HK$13,636,000 (2004: HK$19,060,000) and HK$2,186,000 19 060,0007T) & /& # 2,186,000 (ZZEZ I
(2004: HK$2,186,000), respectively. The Group’s and the | 5 #52,186,0007T) 2B E o REBRAR
Company’s investments represent a 11% and 2.4% (2004: 21% A)“z'H-ir"ﬁ_ASTV‘ BBRZ1M%K24%(Z2EE
and 2.4%) holding of the ordinary shares in ASTV, respectively. PUSE : 21% K% 2.4%) s ©
ASTV is not regarded as an associate of the Group because the RASEBEASTVZEER@MERSHITEE KX
Group has no significant influence over its operating and /g; 7 MZARATEERNER 2BE R
financing activities. Al e
Due to narrowness of the market of ASTV's listed shares and HRASTVZ ETRHD 2 T HKE - UARERAE
in view of the large number of ASTV’s listed shares held by the EEIFBASTVZAE ETRGD - WEZRAM
Group, the directors consider that the quoted market price is HMMELFATFEZAEERZ - Bt - EFL
not a reliable indicator of fair value. Accordingly, the directors Z2BASTVATRHEZ TR ERE SN ([HFIRER
determine the fair value of the ASTV's listed shares by reference EREAN]) BEASTVETRG 2 AFE -
to the discounted cash flow analysis (“DCF Analysis”) provided E%?wﬁ'ﬁﬁiﬁfﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁT&@%ASTVZL
by ASTV because the directors consider the DCF Analysis reflects TROR_ZZTAF=A=+—HZHABRE
the best currently available estimate of the carrying amount of fhEHBRE(E © (A EE A 44,833,0007C (= F
the ASTV's listed shares as at 31 March 2005. An impairment TP : E#536,740,0007T) EREE_ZTTH
loss of HK$44,833,000 (2004: HK$36,740,000) was recognised FZA=+—"HLFEZRAKERER -
in the consolidated income statement for the year ended 31
March 2005.
22. INVENTORIES 22. ®E
THE GROUP
rEH
2005 2004
—EERF —ETNE
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT &M TFor
Goods held for resales RIEEE2ER
— at cost — B AR — 1,938
— at estimated realisable value — R UERER — 4,063

— 6,001
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B 7 R E MY aE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(A% 5E)
23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 23. EZRHEMEVERRK
The Group The Company
AEE RAFE
2005 2004 2005 2004
—EERF T EF —EERF —ZETMEF
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BETF T BE T EBETF T BE T
Trade debtors (note (a)) B SRR (B @) 2,549 13,744 — —
Amounts due from JFE LT Bk & 1 )
associates (note (b)) B (HfaEm) — 821 377 —
Amount due from a JE W —FEl B A )
related company (note (c)) FIB (K17 (c) 36,400 — 36,400 =
Deposits, prepayments and &% ~ BN HER
other receivables H Ath 8 W AR 3R 16,879 25,727 2,844 833
55,828 40,292 39,621 833

Notes: Kt -

(a) Debts are due within an average credit period of 30 to (a) EUWBRF M IEZH RN T302180H
180 days from the date of billing. An ageing analysis of ZEAEERRNIE REZAEZESEK
trade debtors (net of allowances for bad and doubtful R (FOFBR RIEBBREE M) 2 IREC A ITAT ¢
debts) at the balance sheet date is as follows:

THE GROUP

rEE

2005 2004
—gers  -—TEINE
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T B F T
Current Bl HA 2,549 11,984
1 — 60 days overdue MH1Z60H — 44
61 — 90 days overdue BHI61Z 908 — 1,161
Over 90 days overdue BHI90H M £ — 555
2,549 13,744

(b)  The amounts due from associates are unsecured, non- (b) EREEQARRBENEER 2EREEH
interest bearing and have no fixed terms of repayment. EERH - HFEBRM 350K E -
Details of which are disclosed in note 35(c).

(c)  The amount due from a related company is unsecured, (00 ER—THEEAARBENEERER 28K
non-interest bearing and expected to recover within one TEERN —FAURE - EFERHFE35()

year. Details of which are disclosed in note 35(b). R o



“PA Tidetime Sun (Group) Limited Annual Report 2005

Notes to the Financial Statements | B %5 3% & Mf %
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24. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 24, ESRHEHMEMFERR
The Group The Company
KEE RAFE
2005 2004 2005 2004
—ZEERE —ETEEE —ZERE —ZTENEF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETF T BE T EBETF T BT T
Trade creditors (note (a)) B HEMNER (fit) 6,260 4,505 — —
Accruals and other EErERA R
creditors H il e 5 BR 3K 55,797 70,832 7,583 8,701
Amount due to a director B —REZEHE
(note (b)) (K& b)) — 935 — —
62,057 76,272 7,583 8,701
Notes: B ez -

(a)  An ageing analysis of trade creditors at the balance sheet
date is as follows:

0 — 60 days 0% 60H
61 — 90 days 61290H
Over 90 days 90H A E

(b)  The amount due to a director was unsecured, interest
free and has no fixed terms of repayment.

(a)

(b)

REEREZEMNRFZREDTAOT :

THE GROUP
REME

2005 2004
—EBEF —ZEEMF
HK$°000 HK$°000
BEFIT BT
870 2,925
2,977 390
2,413 1,190
6,260 4,505

BN —REFHATDERR - 28 RERE
TEE R o
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AAE¥FIE)
25. BORROWINGS 25. B8
The Group The Company
rEE AT
2005 2004 2005 2004
—EERE —ZTENFE C—ZEEHRF —TTNF
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFT BT T BEFT BT T
Borrowings comprise EEBRENATEHE :
the following:
Bank borrowings: RITIEE :
Bank loans RITER 935 3,937 — —
Mortgage loans RIBER — 283 — —
935 4,220 — —
Convertible bonds (note (a)) A2k EZ (A i) 390 1,560 390 1,560
Other borrowing (note (b))  EffEE (Kfzt(b)) — 4,000 — 4,000
1,325 9,780 390 5,560
Secured BHEA 935 4,220 — —
Unsecured EEA 390 5,560 390 5,560
1,325 9,780 390 5,560
The bank borrowings are RITEEAER
repayable as follows: TH BB &
Within one year —FA 935 3,285 — —
More than one year but —FNE
not exceeding two years 18 1 8 i R 4F — 935 — —
935 4,220 — —
Convertible bonds (note (a)) A2k EZ (A i) 390 1,560 390 1,560
Other borrowing (note (b))  EffEE (Kfzt(b)) — 4,000 — 4,000
1,325 9,780 390 5,560
Less: amount due within B —FRE B2
one year classified 2R (Bl 1k
as current liabilities mE 8 RE) (935) (7,285) — (4,000)
Amount due after one year ~ — & & | Hi 205 390 2,495 390 1,560




L8 Tidetime Sun (Group) Limited Annual Report 2005

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(AR 3IE)

25. BORROWINGS (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

Pursuant to a subscription agreement dated 6 June 2002
(the
the Company and Cosmos Media Investments Limited

“Subscription Agreement”) entered into between

("Cosmos Media”), the Company granted Cosmos Media
rights to subscribe for a series of convertible bonds in
an aggregate principal amount of up to US$26,000,000
(approximately equivalent to HK$202,800,000) in up to
3 tranches. On 9 July 2002, the subscription of the
tranche 1 bond for the principal amount of US$6,000,000
(approximately equivalent to HK$46,800,000) was
completed. Up to 31 March 2005, the principal amounts
of US$5,800,000 (approximately equivalent to
HK$45,240,000) and US$150,000 (approximately
equivalent to HK$1,170,000) were converted into
560,630,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each and
97,181,250 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each at the prices
of HK$0.02 per ordinary share and HK$0.012 per ordinary
share in the capital of the Company, respectively.

On 27 August 2002, Cosmos Media agreed to forfeit its
rights to the tranche 2 and tranche 3 bonds pursuant to
the Subscription Agreement and the Company agreed to
“Option”) to
subscribe for additional new ordinary shares of HK$0.01
each of the Company for a total value of US$4,000,000
at any time from 27 August 2002 up to and including
the maturity date of the tranche 1 bond, 8 July 2005, at
any of the actual conversion prices of the tranche 1

grant to Cosmos Media an option (the

bond which the holder of the tranche 1 bond has actually
adopted as the conversion price of the tranche 1 bond
into the ordinary shares of the Company. Up to 31 March
2005, Cosmos Media has exercised the Option of
US$1,335,185 (approximately equivalent to
HK$10,413,000) to subscribe for the Company's
867,462,611 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each at a price
of HK$0.012.

The bonds are non-interest bearing and unless previously
cancelled, redeemed or converted, the convertible bonds
would be redeemed at 100% of the principal amount
on 8 July 2005.

The loan was unsecured, interest bearing at 5% per
annum and was repaid in full during the year ended 31
March 2005.

Bt %5 3 5 M &

25. 58 (&)

it

(a)

18 ¥ 7 A F) B Cosmos Media Investments
Limited ([Cosmos Media) ) R =TT — 4
NAARNBEI Y2 REWE ([REWM=]) -
ZK A &) Al Cosmos Mediai® H Al R B — &
MNExZn = RERBERSE
26,000,000% 7t (A #H & X B &
202,800,0007T) 2 AR ESH - R=ZTFT
ZF+tANB ' A&£%6,000,000F 5T (4
5 #46,800,0007T) 2 % — &%
EREEK BHE_TZT=F=F=+—
H - 5,800,0003k T (4 #H & R & %
45,240,0007T) K& 150,000% 7t (X9 HHE R
75 #1,170,0007T) 2 A FEE 9 R SR
EBRABE0RTRTHR L BB B
00127 Z B KB BARRQ A KA
560,630,000 & IR E BB ¥ 0.017T 2 &
BRI 97,181,250 BRREE A ®0.017T
2 EBR -

Fie

RZZEZ_FANA=-++tH ' Cosmos
MediaR BEUE ERIEREHBENE 8t
RE=ZHEBEFZ2EN  MARARZM
Cosmos Media# i /] B RE A QA 7 & &
EEBEE0.01m i LMk < R AR (TR
#]) - #{E754,000,000% T © REHA
—EE_FN\NA-t+tRABREEF—HES
HEA GBI ZZERFEANR) (BEZ
B) IEEAER - BRAE—HEHRZHF
ﬁ/\%& HARABE —HEFLBRAER

RAEBR2BERE HE_ZTRF=
B =+ —H » Cosmos Medial {T1&
1,335,185 7T (K& R A% 10,413,000
JL) 2 BERRAE - DARIBH0.012 Tt 2 BIER
f£867,462,61 1R A1 7 8RR EEE K
0.01 T2 B -

EHLTEE  MRILEEY WO
B BEITRRESER - TEREEL
BNBRASES HEE -

ERLERR  BEMNESEFERER
BE_ZZRF=A=1t—HIFEARZ
HIEE o
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Notes to the Financial Statements | Bt % R 45 Ff 5%
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(A% 5E)
26. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES 26. MMEMHERE
At 31 March 2005, the Group had obligations under RZETRF=-A=1T—0 ~EE
finance leases repayable as follows: BEHEAEEZWOT :
The Group
iy
2005 2004
i 3 3 %3 “EIQE
Present Present
value Interest value Interest
of the expense Total of the expense Total
minimum relating minimum minimum relating minimum
lease to future lease lease to future ease
payments periods payments payments periods payments
RS AREEZ BEHES sEf2 AKERE 2 mERE
ZRE  EBAEEX 4% LAE REFERY 2%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETR BETT BETR BETT AETT BETT
Within 1 year —ER 235 29 264 67 1 68
After 1 year but within 2 years  —F&BRER 234 29 263 1 — 1
After 2 years but within 5 years WEEZBRLER 507 64 571 — — -
™ 93 834 1 — 1
976 122 1,098 68 1 69
27. INCOME TAX IN THE BALANCE SHEET 27. EEEBRAZHBH
(a) Income tax payable in the balance sheet (a) EEEBRAZEHFNEHIE
represents
THE GROUP
REE
2005 2004
—EERF —EETNEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
B TF T BT T
Tax payable at 1 April RMUA—RBZE&IE 182 3,808
Disposals of subsidiaries & W B A A — (2,418)
Deconsolidation of subsidiaries THBEETEN B AR (182) —
Provision for income tax P 5 fi#fE — 353
Income tax paid B EH — (1,561)

Tax payable at 31 March R=A=+—HAZEHFE — 182
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27. INCOME TAX IN THE BALANCE SHEET (Continued)

(b)

Deferred tax liabilities/(assets) not recognised

At the balance sheet date and for the year, no
deferred tax assets has been recognised in relation
to tax losses as it is not probable that taxable
profit will be available against which tax losses
can be utilised. The Group’'s tax losses of
approximately HK$210,125,000 (2004:
HK$183,663,000) and HK$1,438,000 (2004:
HK$Nil) do not expire and expire in five years
respectively under the relevant current tax
The Company’s tax losses of
approximately HK$110,434,000 (2004:
HK$107,936,000) do not expire under current tax

legislation.

legislation.

The Group had no significant potential deferred
tax liabilities for the year and at the balance sheet
date.

Bt %5 3 5 M &

27. BEERBERAZAEBH (@)

(b)

AERELEHEAE (BE)

REEBRAFE AR TR E
Rt m A A DA SR TE B 1S - R
BREADEEB 2 EEHIEEE -
BIEEBBITHBEESN  NEE 2
TEE 1B 4978%210,125,0007T (Z =2 ZE
U4 ;¥ 183,663,0007T) K i #E
1,438,0007C (ZZEWMF : BEZ
T)ARTEEREBERAFEARE
W o RIBAEBBRITREEN - AR
2 BIEEE 4751 110,434,0007T (=
TEPN4E ¢ ¥ 107,936,0007T) A&
JE R °

AEERAEEREE B BENE
EEEHBERARE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements | Bt % R 45 Ff 5%
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(A% 5E)
28. SHARE CAPITAL 28. B
2005 2004
—EEREF —EENF
No. of No. of
shares Amount shares Amount
BHE B MIE f& 10 2 B FKIA
Kt iF ‘000 HK$°000 ‘000 HK$'000
Note FR BT T Fhg BT T
Authorised: EIE -
Ordinary shares of BREEEE
HK$0.01 each 0.017T 2 8% 66,000,000 660,000 66,000,000 660,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRHAZE :
At 1 April MM AH—H 13,854,250 138,542 13,760,792 275,216
Capital reduction Bl 8 A% 7S (@)(i) — — — (137,608)
Issuance of shares for AU EE —
the acquisition of o=
a subsidiary EIRG (b) 3,667,000 36,670 93,458 934
Issuance of shares for AW BE —1E
the acquisition of ®E BT
an investment 40 (c) 1,400,000 14,000 — —
Issuance of shares under RiEH & &
the placing and RIE LT
subscription A 19 (d) 1,973,056 19,730 — —
Issuance of shares for  1R#% X #a]
the conversion of R E FH
convertible bonds BTG (e) 97,181 972 — —
Issuance of shares under 5 4% 77 {8 A] 32 I%
the exercise of BEH T T
the subscription rights < R
conferred by AT D
the convertible bonds 867,463 8,675 — —
Issuance of shares under 1R & 17 & %
the exercise of —ETNEF
the subscription rights  + A3 A H&T 3L
conferred by Z S AT
a placing i T 2 REE
agreement dated EETIRG
5 October 2004 178,850 1,789 — —
Issuance of shares under 1B & E &
the capitalisation &A1t
of loans BTG () 1,186,160 11,862 — —
At 31 March R=A=+—H 23,223,960 232,240 13,854,250 138,542
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28. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

Capital reorganisation

Pursuant to a special resolution passed at a special

general meeting of the Company held on 5 December

2003, the Company carried out a capital reorganisation

comprising capital reduction and shares subdivision as

follows:

(i)

(i)

Capital reduction

The nominal value of every issued share was
reduced from HK$0.02 to HK$0.01 upon the capital
reduction (the “Capital Reduction”). On the basis
of 13,760,792,000 issued shares of HK$0.02 each,
the issued share capital of the Company was
reduced from HK$275,216,000 to HK$137,608,000
by cancelling paid-up capital of HK$137,608,000.

The amount of HK$137,608,000 arising from the
Capital Reduction together with the credit balance
of HK$675,784,000 standing in the share premium
account were set off against the accumulated losses
of HK$606,000,000 and the balance was
transferred to contributed surplus of the Company.

Shares subdivision

Upon the Capital Reduction, every authorised share
of HK$0.02 each in the capital of the Company
were subdivided into two new shares of HK$0.01
each (the “Shares Subdivision”). Accordingly, on
the basis of 33,000,000,000 authorised shares, the
Company had authorised share capital of
HK$660,000,000 divided into 66,000,000,000
shares of HK$0.01 each upon the Shares
Subdivision.

Bt %5 3 5 M &

28.

R (&)

At -

(a)

RAEA

BEAARTR -_ZZ=F+—"FHBET
ZREFIARE LBBZFIRER + A
NAETRAER - BRFERAER &K 5D
FHET

(i)

(ii)

&Ny

BREZETRG < EERRKRZAE]R
BB ABEE0.02TTR > EAR0.017T
(TR&ASH ] ) ° #%13,760,792,000
B EEE®0.027t 2 BEITR
DetE KRR ZEBHTRAER
FEHE SR RA A 137,608,000
JC © B8 #275,216,0007T# L =
75 #137,608,0007T °

ERAEIRATEEZRBLEBEE
137,608,0007T + & [ 8 # = & )
w B R 2 & KR & BB K
675,784,0007T © EHEH R EE
/57 #606,000,0007T © M & %8 B
HREREADNAZEHES -

R 17 4

RBEAER%E - AR RIRAR ZK
EEBE0RTZEREAERNHE
FHAEMKERAEEEE00IITZ
D (TRGIFAE]) - At - 1%
33,000,000,0008% 5% & &k 2 5 & -
KN AAEZEEBRAEXBK
660,000,0007C A BB ik Ml 12 B I
41 /4 66,000,000,0000% & A% & 75
®0.0170 21D ©
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28. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Acquisition of a subsidiary

Pursuant to an agreement dated 17 November 2003 and
a supplementary deed dated 19 December 2003 entered
into among the Company, Mr. Zhu Xi He and Ms. Yang
Ping, the Company acquired the entire issued share
capital of Tianjin City Hai Jin Audio- Video Distribution
Co., Ltd.. The consideration was satisfied by the issue
and allotment of new 93,457,944 ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each at the price of HK$0.029 per ordinary
share and as to the balance of HK$9,814,000 in cash.

On 21 August 2004, the Company entered into a
conditional sale and purchase agreement with Tide Time
Holdings Limited, a company controlled by Mr. Chen Ping,
the chairman and executive director of the Company, for
the acquisition of 100% interest in Tidetime Future
Optical Media Technology Limited whereby the Company
issued and alloted new 3,667,000,000 ordinary shares
of HK$0.01 each at the price of HK$0.015 per ordinary
share to Tide Time Holdings Limited as total consideration
of this acquisition.

Acquisition of an investment

On 21 May 2004, the Company entered into a conditional
sale and purchase agreement with Mr. Li Hon Sang (“CS
Vendor”), an independent third party, for the acquisition
of the entire issued capital of China Sports Media Limited
whereby the Company issued and allotted new
1,400,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each at the
price of HK$0.026 per ordinary share to CS Vendor as
total consideration of this acquisition.

Bt %5 3 5 M &

FEBE (KE)ARLA

28.

R (&)

ffat : (&)

(b)

(c)

Wi —EHRERA

BEARAR - ZHEMEERBFLEIRZ
ZEE=F+—At+EHIUZHBEBRR=
TE=FF+ R+t NBIIZZHAEE
RARIWEREMEESERETERAA
ZEMHEETRE  REBNUNEREE
f& 7 # 0.0297T 2 B #& & 17 &k B %
93,457,944 B R EE B ¥ 0.01T 2 31 &
BRI - BB AR9,814,0007T Bl LA
ReEZfT o

R-ZEZTEWFNA=+—H  AAFHSE
ERRERERAR (BARAREFERY
TEERTEEREG 2 QR ILE GH
BEEHZE AKNEREEFTALHEEBERA
A2 ERE - Bt - ARFREREER
BE0.015 2 BRARERRIZERER
N ) %17 M A% 3,667,000,0000% & % &
BEA%0.01 Tz EMmR - AERZERE
ZHBRE -

Wi —ERE

RZZZWMFRA=—+—H * ARRAEB
VE=ETEARE(FEESEA]) T
VEGEEE RS NWRETRESEE
BRARZHEBEITRA - Kt - XA
5 B 3 AL 8 5 0.026 T Z (B & A 7 B
B2 B & 5 %17 REL%1,400,000,000/% &
[REEBE0.0 T2 L @R - LAERZ
B2 BRAE -

—EZhEFE L
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28. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(d)

(e)

The placement and subscription

On 16 August 2004, the Company entered into a placing
agreement with FB Gemini Capital Limited as Placing
Agent to place new 1,030,000,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each to more than 6 placees, independent third
parties, at a price of HK$0.012 per ordinary share. The
net proceeds of HK$11,852,000 from the placing have
been used for general working capital.

On 5 October 2004, the Company entered into a placing
agreement with Achambay Investment Corporation
("Achambay Investment”), an independent third party,
to place new 387,500,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01
each to Achambay Investment at a price of HK$0.012
per ordinary share. The net proceeds of HK$4,650,000
from the placing were used for the repayment of the
Group's outstanding liabilities.

On 26 November 2004, the Company entered into the
two subscription agreements with Ener-B Corporation and
Mr. Zheng Yuhan, both of which are independent third
parties, whereby these two subscribers agreed to
subscribe 250,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
and 305,555,556 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each at a
price of HK$0.018 per ordinary share, respectively. The
aggregate net proceeds of HK$10,000,000 from the
subscriptions were used for the repayment of the Group’s
outstanding liabilities and for general working capital.

Conversion of convertible bonds

On 3 December 2004, convertible bonds with the
principal amount of US$150,000 (approximately
equivalent to HK$1,170,000) were converted into
97,181,250 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each. The
conversion price was HK$0.012 per ordinary share.

Bt %5 3 5 M &

28.

R (&)

ffat : (&)

(d)

(e)

BERAR

RZZZMFENA+RAE AR HEERE
BMEAFRRA A (VEARERIE) 7T B & 15
FoOUBRTEKRAEE0.012TT 2B A
BBeZABA(BILE=F)BEE
1,030,000,000/% & i E 1B %5 ¥ 0.017T 2
MEER EEZHBREIFREE
11,852,000t ERE—MREEE S

RZZTZTWMF+ARAE NAREBILE
= # Achambay Investment Corporation
([ Achambay Investment|) 5T 3 ¢ & 13
o AEREBREE0.012TT ZERR
Achambay Investmentf2 & 387,500,000/%
EREERBEOIITZHMEBR - BBE 2
FT /5 3078 5 58 4 ¥ 4,650,000t B A {E(E
BAEBZAREREE -

R-ZEZEWF+—A=+7 8 ' "AAF]H
% Y9 & % = 75 Ener-B Corporation
EBEBHELETIMNRERZE - Bt -
ZMERBEBARBREREBRAEE
0.0187t 2 {B#& 5 5|73 #E 250,000,000 &
fEmES o 2 TABK K
305,555,556k FRREEH %0.01m 2 &
AR - REBCBRABREFEEEK
10,000,000t E AEEEARE B 2 REE
BERER—REEESR -

SImTARE S

R_ZEEME+_A=H X&£EA
150,000 7T (K948 R4 %1,170,0007T)
2 Al AR B H 10 597,181,250 & %
EEEK00I Tz E@K - RREAETR
LB 0.0127T ©
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28. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(f)

Capitalisation of loans

Pursuant to a deed of settlement dated 24 January 2003,
China Strategic Holdings Limited, Hanny Holdings Limited
“Star
East Holdings Limited”) (collectively referred to as the
“Creditors”) agreed to settle the loan of HK$40,000,000
by the issue and allotment of the Company’s new
400,000,000 new ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each at
the expiry of 24 months after the date of the deed of

and SMI Corporation Limited (formerly known as

settlement. The completion date of the issue and
allotment of these new ordinary shares was 24 January
2005.

On 6 October 2004, the Company entered into a
conditional loan capitalisation agreement with Shanghai
Jinchao Silk Co., Ltd. (“Creditor”), an independent third
party, and Ning Bo Shengguang Packaging and Printing
Co., Ltd. (“the Assignor”) whereby the Assignor agreed
to assign a loan of RMB10,000,000 (approximately
equivalent to HK$9,347,000) due from the Company to
the Creditor, and the Company also agreed with the
Creditor to issue and allot new 786,160,000 new ordinary
shares of HK$0.01 each at a price of HK$0.012 per
ordinary share to set-off against this loan due to the
Creditor.

All those shares issued during the year rank pari passu
in all respects with the then existing shares.

Bt %5 3 5 M &

28.

R (&)

Hiat -

(f)

(%)
BERERL

BIER =TT =F—A=-+WMHAZZE
BEE  REREBARAA  HESES
RARIREXERERBRAR (AIHEIER
TEHEEERAR]) (BEIEREAL
A 2FERAMEERZIER Y B HAE — + U {E
B & 7 B 3% 17 [ it 2$400,000,0000% & %
EEBBOITZHEBREEERBE
40,000,0007T ° 1T RAEEEZEFH T EKR
ZERABHAETTRF—A=-F+WAH -

RZZZTWF+ANE » KAREBIE
=ELBRMABAEREELA ([EHE
AD RERENBEDRIARAR (852
ADRISZE I%#E%X’émlﬁ%% BRI
EEAREEEANRNAERERAZER
/\Eﬁ%mooooomz(%’]—r w7
9,347,0007T) * A2 & JNEREHE AT E
RERLBERBE0.012T 2 EBRETR
fid 2% 786,160,0000% & I @ E B ¥ 0.017T
ZHEBR - NEHEZEERBEEAZE
e

RNERBTZRERNDEE R 2HER D
ERTEAFARASES -
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29. RESERVES

(a)

The Group

At 1 April 2003

Capital reorganisation
(Note 28(a)(i))

Issuance of share for
the acquisition of a
subsidiary (note 28(b))

Reserve released upon

disposal of subsidiaries

Net loss for the year
Distribution

At 31 March 2004 and
1 April 2004

Premium on issuance of
shares for the
acquisition of a
subsidiary (note 28(b))

Premium on issuance of
shares for the
acquisition of an

investment (note 28(c))

Premium on issuance of
shares under the

placing and subscription

(note 28(d)

Premium on issuance of
shares under the
conversion of
convertible bonds
(note 28(e))

Premium on issuance of
shares under the
exercise of the
subscription rights
conferred by the
convertible bonds

Premium on issuance of
shares under the
exercise of the
subscription rights
conferred by the
placing agreement
dated 5 October 2004

Premium on issuance of
shares under the
capitalisation of loans
(note 28(f))

Reserve released upon
deconsolidation of
subsidiaries

Net loss for the year

At 31 March 2005

¥ 1]
R-EZ=ENA-A
RAEq

(B #28(3)()
BRE-RHEAR
Rakh
(B5£28(0))
MEERB A AR
BhoBR
AEEFESE
2k

R-ZEME=A=1-H
R-SEMERA-H

BUE-RHEAT

RR1 (Hir2sm)

2EE
BRE-ERERS
& (Witas()
LB
RERERARRA
Rt (Hi280)
kB

RELATARER

RRG (Wit2se)

ZifE

RENETARER
EA 1
R AEE

BEIER-ZTNE
TARRAY
ZEERF
filF <
AEELN
Rtz &R

REETER
EBE U
(B5£28(1)
LB

M B&EATE
WEATE
Bl BR

REEFEFE

R-ETRE=A=1-A

BY 75 3R o5 M =
29. f#fE
Share  Contributed Translation Capital Other  Accumulated
premium surplus reserve reserve reserve losses Total
kg R42H EifR ey -1 L)1 2itE# i
HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000
E¥TT E¥TT TR E¥TT E¥TT E¥TT E¥TT
675,784 = (269) 3,490 40,000 (608,599 110,406
(675,784) 207,39 - - - 606,000 137,608
1,776 — — — — — 1,776
= = 101 = = = 101
- - - - - (231,046) (231,046)
— (32,525) — — — — (32,525)
1,776 174,867 (168) 3,490 40,000 (233,645) (13,680)
18,335 - - - - - 18,335
22,400 - - - - - 22,400
6,772 — — — — — 6,772
198 - - - - - 198
1,738 - - - - - 1,738
536 - - - - - 536
37,485 - - - (40,000) - (2,515)
= = 24 = = = 24
- - - - - (177,038) (177,038)
89,240 174,867 76 3490 - (410,683) (143,010)




REBE (KE)ARLT —SSHEFH )

Bt 7% R B R
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(A %51 8)
29. RESERVES (Continued) 29. f®RfE (&)
Share  Contributed Other Accumulated
premium surplus reserve losses Total
R EE BB Hit e ES 3 @zt
HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 H[('OOQ : HK*000
BETT BETT BEF T BETT BETT
(b)  The Company VN
1 April 2003 RZZE=F
mA—H 675,784 — 40,000 (606,000) 109,784
Capital reorganisation RAEH

(note 28(a)(i)) ([ 7£28(a)(i) (675,784) 207,392 — 606,000 137,608
Premium on issuance Bl E—FHE

of shares for the DA ETRG

acquisition of a subsidiary  (ffz£28(b))

(note 28(b)) (B 1,776 — — — 1,776
Net loss for the year $$r1§ﬂ§}$§5 — = = (232,762) (232,762)
Distribution 2K — (32,525) — — (32,525)
At 31 March 2004 and RZZTNF

1 April 2004 —A=+—H

L —ETNEF
MmA—H 1,776 174,867 40,000 (232,762) (16,119)
Premium on issuance Z%Hﬁlﬁ%—f'aﬁ KB

of shares for the DAl BTG

acquisition of (H7z£28(b))

a subsidiary (note 28(b))  Z (B 18,335 — — — 18,335
Premium on issuance AUB—HEE

of shares for the E3adn)

acquisition of an (H17£28(c)

investment (note 28(c)) 2R 22,400 — — — 22,400
Premium on issuance BERELRE

of shares under BRM

the placing and (7 5£28(d))

subscription (note 28(d))  Z'@f{8 6,772 — — — 6,772
Premium on issuance R R A

of shares under EHEITRG

the conversion (1 5£28(e))

of convertible bonds Z5fE

(note 28(e)) 198 — — — 198
Premium on issuance RETEAHBE

of shares under EHEMET

the exercise of ZREEET

the subscription rights B2 mE

conferred by the
convertible bonds 1,738 — — — 1,738

Premium on issuance BETE
of shares under R-ZZEZEF
the exercise of +BRBEZ
subscription rights ZIE B
conferred by the placing ~ FTi T 2 R
agreement dated BEITRM
5 October 2004 ZE(E 536 — — — 536
Premium on issuance BEEHRERL
of shares under BRM
the capitalisation (K 3£28(F)
of loans (note 28(f)) (B 37,485 — (40,000) — (2,515)
Net loss for the year Zkiﬂgﬁ?ﬂ}%%ﬁ — — — (174,526) (174,526)
At 31 March 2005 —Z% £¢

= ﬂ = 89,240 174,867 — (407,288) (143,181)
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29. RESERVES (Continued) 29. f##E (&)

The contributed surplus of the Group and the Company
represents the difference between the net amount arising
from the reduction of share premium account, Capital
Reduction (as disclosed in note 28(a)(i)) and the transfer
to eliminate the Company’s accumulated losses of
HK$606,000,000 at 1 April 2003, after deduction the
distribution as mentioned in note 13.

The capital reserve of the Group represents the difference
between the nominal value of the shares of the
subsidiaries acquired pursuant to a group reorganisation
in November 1992 and the nominal value of the

Company'’s shares issued in exchange therefor.

At 31 March 2005, the accumulated losses of the Group
include HK$4,345,000 (2004: HK$4,295,000) retained

by associates of the Group.

Pursuant to the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, at 31
March 2005, the Company cannot distribute any of its
reserves to the shareholders of the Company. However,
the Company’'s share premium account of
HK$89,240,000 (2004: HK$1,776,000) as at 31 March
2005 can be distributed in the form of fully paid bonus

shares.

REBERARRZEHRKERERRKR G
wmEIRATES ZFE - BRAHR (K&
28(a)(VFTHE FE) RE R UK AR A RN ZF
TE=ZFMNA—BZRFABEESE
606,000,000 2 7= 58 (4 1R M a2 13FF it
2D IRVERRIE) °

AEEZEAFERERE-AN_F+—
AETEEEAEMBRBZMBLRZRN
HEERNAFRUEREZ 2 BITRMEE
MEZERE -

RZZEZRE=A=+—H KXEEZZ
SEEBREASEBERARRE 2B
4,345,0007C (Z=Z W4 : 584,295,000
JT) °

BEERE-—NN\—FQRE R_ZZT
AFE=A=+—8  AARTFEAAA
ZRRDIREEMEE - Am - XARR
—ETERF =A==+ —AZBRMHEERR
2 75 #89,240,0007C (ZEZT W F : B
1,776,0007T) AT AR B AT IR 2 5 RN1ED
& °
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30. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS 30. EERKER

The Company and its Hong Kong subsidiaries operate
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes (the “MPF schemes”)
under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under the
jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance.
the MPF schemes are defined contribution retirement
schemes administered by independent trustees. Under
the MPF schemes, the employers and employees are
each required to make contributions to the MPF schemes
at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a
cap of monthly relevant income of $20,000.

Contributions to the schemes vest immediately.

The retirement benefits costs under the MPF schemes
charged to the consolidated income statement amounted
to HK$220,000 (2004: HK$2,111,000) during the year.

The subsidiaries of the Group in the PRC other than
Hong Kong participate in pension schemes organised by
the respective municipal governments whereby they are
required to pay annual contributions at the rates ranging
from 18% to 22% of the standard wages determined
by the relevant authorities in the PRC.

Under the above schemes, retirement benefits of existing
and retired employees are payable by the relevant PRC
scheme administrators and the Group has no further

obligations beyond the annual contributions.

The aggregate employers’ contributions by the Group
under the PRC pension schemes amounted to
HK$337,000 (2004: HK$579,000) during the year.

The Group does not operate any other scheme for

retirement benefits provided to the Group’s employees.

AR REBEMBARRBEEERH
RIESEBGD - REERBEEE &M
TZzRERYARBMEAESTE ([RES
FHE) - RESHEABLIXEAETRE
ZEBEFTRNRETE - RIFBESTE
BEXTRhEEXBEARBEERABERAZ
5%[RRTES T BIEH R - HEEZ A AR
A LR RAE¥20,0007T - B & 2 H %
ANmEEEMA -

BiEwESTE FRAGARFERNE
ZIRRABE R B AR ZE A #220,000T (Z 2=
P& ##2,111,0007T) °

AEBERTE (FEKRIN 2B AR2H
HAARMBTRNE 2 RIKSTE - WAR
ZIERETEZ18%E2%FFHEHMK
FERHTEEAFMHETE -

Rig LiiEr 8 - MAERDERKEER ZRIK
BABTEBAFEHEREAN  MEE
FELEFN  NEEXEABE -

FR - ARAREPRERETEELZ
fH TR 4 RE E S 5337,0000T (Z 2R £
7 #579,0007T)

AREE I ER AT EMA AN EEREE 2
HWRKBH 2518 -
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31.

EQUITY COMPENSATION BENEFITS

Prior to 29 October 2002, the Company operated a
share option scheme whereby the board of directors
could, at their absolute discretion, grant options to any
employees of the Group and directors of the Company
to subscribe for shares of the Company (the “Old
Scheme”). On 29 October 2002, the Old Scheme was
terminated and a new share option scheme (the “New
Scheme”) was adopted, whereby the board of directors
may, at their absolute discretion, grant options to any
eligible employees of the Group, any suppliers and
customers of the Group or any directors and shareholders
of the Company to subscribe for shares of the Company.
Thereafter, no further options can be granted under the
Old Scheme. The options granted under the Old Scheme
are still exercisable in accordance with the terms of the
Old Scheme.

For the Old Scheme, the exercise price of options was
the higher of the nominal value of the shares and 80%
of the average closing prices of the shares on the Stock
Exchange for the five trading days immediately preceding
the date of grant. The share options are exercisable for
a period of not more than ten years commencing from
the date of grant. For the New Scheme, the exercise
price of the options will be the highest of the nominal
value of the shares, the closing price of the shares on
the Stock Exchange on the date of grant and the average
closing price of the shares on the Stock Exchange for
the five trading days immediately preceding the date of
grant. The life of the New Scheme is effective for ten
years from the date of adoption until 28 October 2012.

Bt %5 3 5 M &

31.

EamEE

R-ZZFBZ-_F+A-TNHA  ARFR
N IRBRERTE B EFgR 2R
REAAKETANEERARRESRG
FERHE - ARBAQERND ([EFE]) -
R-ZZFEZ-_F+A-1+NB  EFELE
b FERESE (THE8])) 2 &%
MBI EFEEREERERARET
MeaEBREERE AEEEMHERLRE
P rRAEAQXAEMEETRRRERELBEK
B URBARBED - H& - ARET
SREEFIRDEMBRE - REBEE
RO CERAREMDATRER S ZERTT
f&E o

HEEMS BREZTEEAROE
BEEBROREEREAPIIAEARSAE
BT FHRTESONMEZESE °
BRETRF L BBHETABTBBETF
RITEE - EFETEIME - BREZITEE
BRHEE  RONELBBHEBRIATZ
WHEERRNREEREBHITARRL S
HEMZAzFHKRTE=E2&EmE °
Mtz B ERMBBRT T4 &
EZE-——HF+AZ+NHIE-
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31. EQUITY COMPENSATION BENEFITS (Continued) 31.

Each option gives the holder the right to subscribe for

one share.

(a) Movements in share options

(i)

(if)

7 -

EamERERN @)

(a) BREZH

The particulars of the share options granted (i)

under the Old Scheme outstanding during the

year are as follows:

At 1 April
Cancelled

At 31 March

Options vested at 31 March

REA—H
B
MR=A=+—H

R=A=tT—BEXZBR#E

The particulars of the share options granted (ii)

under the New Scheme outstanding during

the year are as follows:

At 1 April
Issued

At 31 March

Options vested at 31 March

RIEA—H
B %17
MR=A=+—H

R=A=tT—BEXZBR#E

—EZhESFE Yy

BOBRES THAARE Kk 2%

FARBEFIEL 2 HARTT

EEREFBDT
2005 2004
—EBAF —ETME
Number of Number of
share options = share options
BREHR B ERE
744,190,000 744,190,000
(595,490,000) —
148,700,000 744,190,000
148,700,000 744,190,000

FRARBHERDE Z HAKTT
EEREFBET
2005 2004
—EBAF —ZEEMEF
Number of Number of
share options  share options
BREHA EREEE
15,000,000 =
15,000,000 =
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31. EQUITY COMPENSATION BENEFITS (Continued)

(b) Terms of unexpired and unexercised share options

at the balance date:

Date of

options granted Exercisable period

=B R A T

Director

55

27/04/2000 27/04/2000 — 26/04/2010
05/09/2000 05/09/2000 — 04/09/2010
31/01/2001 31/01/2001 — 30/01/2011
14/06/2001 14/06/2001 — 13/06/2011
04/01/2002 04/01/2002 — 03/01/2012
07/01/2002 07/01/2002 — 06/01/2012
08/08/2002 08/08/2002 — 07/08/2012
16/09/2002 16/09/2002 — 15/09/2012
14/03/2005 01/07/2006 — 31/12/2006
14/03/2005 01/07/2007 — 31/12/2007
14/03/2005 01/07/2008 — 31/12/2008
Notes:

(1) The exercise price is based on the average closing
price of the Company’s shares in December 2005.

(2)  The exercise price is based on the average closing
price of the Company’s shares in December 2006.

31. EEMESRN (&)

(b)

Exercise
price
TEE
HK$
B

0.1760
0.2410
0.1520
0.1290
0.1090
0.0140
0.0720
0.0710
0.0215
Note (1)
Bt (1)
Note (2)
Kt i (2)

B -

5B R JE R B e R T S A

BRAK
2005 2004
—EEIF —EENE
Number of Number of
share options =~ share options
BREHA B ESE
37,000,000 38,000,000
— 30,000,000
80,000,000 161,000,000
— 1,000,000
30,000,000 70,000,000
— 15,000,000
— 11,000,000
— 45,000,000
5,000,000 —
5,000,000 —
5,000,000 —
162,000,000 371,000,000

TREDNZEARTABMNR _-ZZTRF+
Az ¥l mEHE -

TEREDNZEARBBMR _ZZERFELT =
Az ¥l mEHE -
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31.

EQUITY COMPENSATION BENEFITS (Continued)

(b) (Continued)

Date of
options granted

REBRERS

Employees

EE

27/04/2000
13/06/2000
17/07/2000
21/07/2000
05/09/2000
14/11/2000
08/12/2000
27/12/2000
31/01/2001
06/03/2001
23/04/2001
14/06/2001
04/01/2002
25/03/2002
25/03/2002
08/08/2002
16/09/2003

Exercisable period

TS

27/04/2000 — 26/04/2010
13/06/2000 — 12/06/2010
17/07/2000 — 16/07/2010
21/07/2000 — 20/07/2010
05/09/2000 — 04/09/2010
14/11/2000 — 13/11/2010
08/12/2000 — 07/12/2010
27/12/2000 — 26/12/2010
31/01/2001 — 30/01/2011
06/03/2001 — 05/03/2011
23/04/2001 — 22/04/2011
14/06/2001 — 13/06/2011
04/01/2002 — 03/01/2002
25/03/2002 — 24/03/2012
25/03/2002 — 24/03/2012
08/08/2002 — 07/08/2012
16/09/2002 — 15/09/2012

Bt %5 3 5 M &

FEBE (KE)ARLA

31. BEMESRN (&)

—EZhESFE L)

(b) (&)
2005 2004
—EERF —ZETNF
Exercise Number of Number of
price share options  share options
TEE BREHA BRRESE

HK$
B

0.1760 — 60,900,000
0.2310 — 3,000,000
0.2200 — 1,000,000
0.2410 — 6,000,000
0.2410 — 4,800,000
0.1860 — 2,400,000
0.1830 — 6,000,000
0.1510 — 3,000,000
0.1520 — 58,580,000
0.1760 — 100,000
0.0970 — 17,000,000
0.1290 — 1,000,000
0.1090 1,700,000 48,960,000
0.1520 — 64,000,000
0.1760 — 1,450,000
0.0720 — 31,000,000
0.0710 — 64,000,000
1,700,000 373,190,000
163,700,000 744,190,000
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31. EQUITY COMPENSATION BENEFITS (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Details of share options granted under the New
Scheme during the year, all of which were granted
for nil consideration.

Date of

options granted Exercisable period

=B R A T

14/03/2005 01/07/2006 — 31/12/2006
14/03/2005 01/07/2007 — 31/12/2007
14/03/2005 01/07/2008 — 31/12/2008
Notes:

(1) The exercise price is based on the average closing
price of the Company’s shares in December 2005.

(2)  The exercise price is based on the average closing

price of the Company’s shares in December 2006.
No share option under the Old Scheme and New
Scheme was exercised during the years ended 31
March 2005 and 2004.

32. NOTES THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW
STATEMENT

(a)

Acquisition of subsidiaries

During the year ended 31 March 2005, the Group
acquired 100% interest in Tidetime Future Optical
Media Technology Limited at a consideration of
HK$55,005,000, satisfied by the issue and
allotment of the Company’s new 3,667,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each at a price of
HK$0.015 per ordinary share.

During the year ended 31 March 2004, the Group
acquired 100% interest in Tianjin City Hai Jin
Audio-Video Distribution Co., Ltd. at a
consideration of HK$12,524,000, satisfied by the
issue and allotment of the Company’'s new
93,457,944 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each at
the price of HK$0.029 per ordinary share and as
to the balance of HK$9,814,000 in cash.

Bt %5 3 5 M &

31. EEMESRN (&)

(c)

Exercise
price
TEE
HK$
B
0.0215
Note (1)
Bt a(1)
Note (2)
Kt & 2)

(d)

32. ®E

(a)

FRREHTER L 2 HARTEBK

EFBOT  ZEFBEREZ2HHERT

REEHE -
2005 2004
—EERRF —ZETMEF
Number of Number of
share options = share options
BREHA B ESE
5,000,000 —
5,000,000 —
5,000,000 —
15,000,000 —

Bzt

() AEEDEARARGR-BEEH
E+= A2 Tk B -

2 AEERDEARABRBR-FEX
E+-AZ FykmEHE -

RBE_ZTAFR_ZTTENF=HA
=t BLEFER  BIETEEFNE
Bt EIIAT 2 B -

REeERBRME

WEEHE LR

RBE_ZTERAF=ZA=+—HILF
BN ANEEZRREAERS5,005,000
TREREETAEBERARZE
kAR - B BRI TR E RS
¥ 0.0157T 2 B #& 3 17 &k 2 &
3,667,000,0000% & A% E 1B & #50.01
TTZARAFEBRIZMRE -

RBEE-_ZZTNE=A=1+—HIF
BN ANEEKRREAER 12,524,000
TTWEREMEEZEETERAA
ZEEEBEITRA  WEREERE
B A ¥0.0297T 2 B 31T R B %
93,457,944 F B 0.01 T 2 A A
AT BRIANRE  MAEEE
9,814,000 T A AR & Z 1 ©
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32. NOTES THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW 32. ZEeRE&FRERMTE (&)

STATEMENT (Continued)

(a) Acquisition of subsidiaries (Continued) (a) WEMBAR (&)
The Group
rEE
2005 2004
—EERF —ZETNNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
EBEFT BT T
Net assets acquired TN EEFRE
Investments in securities (non-current) =&K& (3ERH) — 232
Fixed assets & 7E & = 22,850 193
Inventories FE — 1,082
Debtors, prepayments and deposits BUWEER ENRERES 361 689
Cash at bank and in hand RITRFHERE 38 552
Creditors, deposits received and BRAER  Blze Rk
accrued charges et & A (2,023) (1,701)
Minority interests L E R = — (27)
21,226 1,020
Positive goodwill arising on acquisition Y B 2 4 2 IF pg &2 33,779 11,504
Total consideration B (E 55,005 12,524
Satisfied by: LA
Cash consideration ReERE — 9,814
Issue of ordinary shares BITEBR 55,005 2,710
55,005 12,524
Analysis of net inflow/(outflow) of WHEHMEBAFZEER
cash and cash equivalents in ZRBSEBBERAS
respect of acquisition of (R BEDM
subsidiaries:
Cash consideration paid ENRERE — (9,814)
Less: Cash of the subsidiary acquired & : FTRIEH B A F 2RE 38 552
38 (9,262)
The subsidiaries acquired during the year RWEBRELEZE B AR - FAMEEZ

contributed turnover and loss before taxation of
HK$277,000) and
HK$10,841,000 (2004: HK$10,000), respectively,

for the period between the date of acquisition and

HK$13,000 (2004:

the balance sheet date.

ME AR IRE X RRBAEE S BIE
¥ 13,0007 (Z =T M4 : 277,000
7t) BB #10,841,0005C (ZZEZT M4 B
#10,0007T) °
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32. NOTES THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW
STATEMENT (Continued)

(b) Disposals of subsidiaries

32. MEBERERWE (&)

(b) HEMBAF

The Group
REE
2005 2004
—EERF —EETNEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
EBEFT B F T
Net assets disposed of FFHEEEFRE
Fixed assets EE&E 10,583 33,988
Purchased programme rights (NG — 2,909
Inventories FE — 9,196
Debtors, prepayments and deposits FEWEER - BN HRIEREZE S — 53,755
Cash at bank and in hand BT RFEES — 13,559
Creditors, deposits received and BRAER  BElikes R
accrued charges EstE A — (34,518)
Bank borrowings RITEE — (5,997)
Tax payable FE BB 18 — (2,418)
10,583 70,474
Reclassified to investments in associates EH D iEAHE NG 2K E — (8,137)
Translation reserve realised BB E N FE — 92
Gain/(loss) on disposal HE WS (EE) 416 (15,437)
10,999 46,992
Satisfied by: AR
Investments in securities BHEE — 1,009
Cash B 10,999 45,983
10,999 46,992
Analysis of net inflow/(outflow) of HEMEBATFZEHER
cash and cash equivalents in ZEBRSEBERAS
respect of disposals of (R BEDN
subsidiaries:
Cash consideration HeRE 10,999 45,983
Less: Cash of the subsidiaries B HEWB AR RS — (13,559)
disposed of
Amount receivable at 31 March R=A=+—HB2
JFE W K EE (1,833) —
9,166 32,424

The subsidiaries disposed of during the year
contributed HK$Nil (2004: HK$2,270,000) to the
Group's turnover and had loss from operations of
HK$5,000 (2004: HK$14,940,000) up to the date
of disposal.

HELXEHMSILE  FARLEZHNEAR
HREXEBBT L (ZETWF - B
2,270,0007T) + WHR{S 4L & E5 1B E 5,000
T (ZZ TN : #H#14,940,0007T) ©
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32. NOTES THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW 32. MEBEHRERMET (&)
STATEMENT (Continued)

(c)

Disposal of unconsolidated subsidiary () HEFSRETEWELQR
The Group
rEE
2005 2004
—EB2AF —TETNEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Net assets disposed of FFTHEEERE
Fixed assets EE & &= 1,995 —
Purchased programme rights DN Y 10,150 —
Investments in securities BHIEE 2,247 —
Debtors, prepayments and deposits BUWEER ENRERES 10,188 —
Cash at bank and in hand RITRFHERAE 1,126 —
Creditors, deposits received and ERAER  Blikes R
accrued charges EstE A (2,844) =
Bank borrowings RITEE (3,002) —
Tax payable FE & Fi 18 (182) =
Minority interests D H R = (7,871) —
11,807 —
Reclassified to investments in BENOBRKERT
associates Z®E (7,132) =
Translation reserve realised EERE N #EE — =
Attribution goodwill FEAE R 9,590 —
Loss on disposal HEEE (4,265) —
Total consideration wHRE 10,000 —
Satisfied by: AR
Amount set off against the creditor I EBRA 2 EE 10,000 —
Analysis of net outflow of cash HEXGRETENBLARZ
and cash equivalents in respect RERERBEELER
of disposal of unconsolidated W TERED M
subsidiary:
Cash consideration ReERE — =
Less: Cash of unconsolidated B HEEREEE
subsidiary disposed of MEBA AR ZHE (1,126) —

(1,126)
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32. NOTES THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW 32. MEBERERNE &)
STATEMENT (Continued)

(d) Deconsolidation of subsidiaries (d) TBEEFTEHRBELR
The Group
rEHE
2005 2004
—genF —TENF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFT BT T
Net assets disposed of FFHEEERE
Fixed assets & E & & 4,531 —
Purchased programme rights BB BN B 4,700 =
Inventories FE 7,950 —
Debtors, prepayments and deposits FEWEER - BN HRIEREZE® 12,171 —
Cash at bank and in hand RITEFERS 6,502 —
Creditors, deposits received and BRER BlEZEe R
accrued charges FEET & R (8,052) —
Net amounts due to the Group & 15 7N &5 B 3R IR 5 B (144,142) =
Minority interests DEIR R = (186) =
(116,526) —
Translation reserve realised upon RABIEREFTEWB R A
deconsolidation of subsidiaries i"“:"‘“fEZ[FJnﬁﬁ 244 —
Goodwill reversed upon RABEFEETEWRB A A
deconsolidation of subsidiaries R E 2 g E 2,167 —
Net gain on deconsolidation of THEETEME R A
subsidiaries 2 W F R 114,115 —
Analysis of net outflow of cash and FTB&HLAHEMEBEATZ
cash equivalents in respect of HekERELER
deconsolidation of subsidiary: REFEDW
Cash of subsidiaries deconsolidated THEEHTENBEARIZES 6,502 —
The Deconsolidation of subsidiaries during the year did FATBEFEEFEMNB AR EASREE

not have significant cash flows attributed to the Group. HRERBESRE °
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32. NOTES THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW 32. MEBERERME (&)
STATEMENT (Continued)

(e) Distribution of shares (e) DBIKERMD
On 5 December 2003, the Company distributed R-_BZE=F+—"FFHAB ' AAFMA
351,257,794 shares of Leadership Publishing to the AN TR E S IE351,257, 79408 B (£
shareholders of the Company, which represents the VRIS - A A TRE AR &

entire shareholding interest of the Company in
Leadership Publishing. The net assets disposed of
were as follows:

ERIEAR LS - T EEEFEN T -

The Group
REE
2005 2004
—EEEF —EENF
HK$'000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Net assets disposed of: A EEEFE:
Fixed assets B 7E & = — 80,149
Goodwill Bk — 1,764
Interests in associates RN D ey — 3,597
Pledged deposit placed with RERR —HEMBE AR 2
a finance company [ RER — 5,000
Investments in securities BHKE — 1,565
Inventories FE — 1,470
Debtors, prepayments and deposits EUWEER - BNRERES — 32,167
Prepaid airtime T8 1) & 5 BF ER — 21,603
Cash at bank and in hand BT RFEES — 1,592
Creditors, deposits received and ERAER  Blikes R
accrued charges et E A — (16,205)
Obligations under finance leases L& THEAE — (13,630)
Borrowings P — (20,851)
Amounts due to related parties FERT B B E A T3R8 — (42,467)
Minority interests DR R = — (23,238)
— 32,516
Translation reserve realised BEIRE NG — 9
Distribution in specie =R — 32,525
Net cash outflow arising on PIRFEEZE S
distribution: T FEE
Cash of bank and in hand disposed of R{T N FHESEE — (1,592)
The subsidiary distributed during the year ended REBE_ZETNF=A=1T—HILF
31 March 2004 utilised approximately HK$58 EAMARZHBARSHAEE 2
million of the Group’s net operating cash flows, RREIR S M EIF R B 58,000,000

contributed HK$557,000 for investing activities. JC 0 ARE R E AR B 557,0007T °



(N} Tidetime Sun (Group) Limited Annual Report 2005

Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA H51I(E)

32. NOTES THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW
STATEMENT (Continued)

33.

(f) Major non-cash transactions

(i)

(i)

(iii)

During the year, the Group acquired 100%
interest in Tidetime Future Optical Media
Technology Limited at a consideration of
HK$55,005,000. The consideration was
satisfied by the issue and allotment of the
Company's new 3,667,000,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.01 each at a price of
HK$0.015 per ordinary share.

During the year, the Group disposed of 40%
interest in SECC at a consideration of
HK$10,000,000 for settlement of a creditor.

During the year, the convertible bonds of
US$150,000 (approximately equivalent to
HK$1,170,000)
97,181,250 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
at the conversion price of HK$0.012 per

were converted into

ordinary share.

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

At 31 March 2005, the total future minimum lease

payments in respect of related premises under non-

cancellable operating leases in respect of rented premises

are payable as follows:

Within 1 year
After 1 year but within 5 years

—FR

Bt %5 3 5 M &

—FREAFA

32.

33.

FERERERME B

(f)

FTEHREXS

(i)

(i)

(iii)

FA - AEEEREREEK
55,005,000 4 #& 2= 12 = ¥ ¢
BEBARABZE2MPERS - K
BHEBREERIEEREK
0.0157C 2 B #& & 17 K B %
3,667,000,000% & % T (B 7 &
0OV TZ ARRIFERBBK X
i o

FR - AEBEBZREBE
10,000,0007T H & BT 2 1R 44 2
40%HEzE © UBEEMNIRK °

A 150,000k T (HWHAER
75 %1,170,0007T) B IR B AR E
BRREE0.0127T 2 A HBE KR
#97,181,250f% & IR B B &
0.01 T2 ERA °

RERERE

I

— ==

EE=RA=+—H8 xEEEH

REEANEEEFTZAARBECEEHE
XN ARRKEESLBEOT :

THE GROUP
KEH

2005 2004
—EEREF —EETF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
1,578 1,032
1,116 —
2,694 1,032
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33. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS (Continued) 33. ReEHERE (@)
The Group leases a number of properties under operating AEERBLEHELEZEYE - HE
leases. The leases typically run for an initial period of —RNTEBE—ZE=F - HEHEBENX
one to three years. None of the leases includes NED o
contingent rentals.
The Company had no significant operating lease MEZEH  AARLEERLEHEE A
commitments at the balance sheet date. 7=
34. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 34. FIREME
At 31 March 2005, the contingent liabilities of the Group R_ZEREF=A=+—H8 AEEEXK
and the Company were summarised as follows: RAIZHABERMAAT
The Group The Company
AEE XA F]
2005 2004 2005 2004
“EETHE —ZTTNF —ZTERF —ZTIETNF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

EBETFT BT T YT BB T T

Guarantees given to banks FtHI B A &) fr&

in respect of banking RIT{E & MM

facilities granted to RITIEH 2 1R

subsidiaries — — — 3,000
Guarantees given to i S A=/

outsiders in respect of 5] Z RT% e

service agreement il M SN R A A

signed by an associate {EH 2 1R — — 3,150 8,169

— = 3,150 11,169
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35. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

There were the following material transactions with

related parties during the year:

(a)

On 24 August 2004, the Company entered into an
agreement with Tide Time Holdings Limited, a
company controlled by Mr. Chen Ping, the chairman
and executive director of the Company, whereby
the Company agreed to purchase and Tide Time
Holdings Limited agreed to sell the entire 100%
interest in the share capital of Tidetime Future
Optical Media Technology Limited (“Tidetime Future
Optical”) for a consideration of HK$55,005,000.
In the opinion of the Company’s directors, the
transaction was carried out on normal commercial
terms and in the ordinary course of business.

On 22 December 2004, the Company entered into
a conditional agreement with Sun Media
Investment Limited (“SMI"”), a company controlled
by Ms. Yang Lan (a vice-chairman and executive
director of the Company) and Dr. Wu Zheng, Bruno
(the former executive director of the Company and
spouse of Ms Yang Lan), whereby the Company
agreed to sell and SMI agreed to purchase the
entire 100% interest in the share capital of China
Sports Media Limited, which was acquired by the
Company during the year, for a consideration of
HK$46,200,000. The consideration is satisfied (i)
in cash and/or (ii) by way of transfer of the
investments, which are traded on the Stock
Exchange, the stock exchange of the United States
and/or other stock markets and satisfy certain
criteria as set out in the circular dated 14 January
2005. The settlement must be made within 180
days after the completion of this transaction. In
the opinion of the Company’s directors, the
transaction was carried out on normal commercial
terms and in the ordinary course of business.

Bt %5 3 5 M &

35. EABEALTRS

NTRFANEMEALTETZIEARS ¢

R-ZEZWFENB-_+WMAE » KAF]
HEEEHARERBRAA (AAAQA
FTERPTEEHRELEEF A
)R i - Bt - AARIRER
EMREHRERERATAIRELES
REEFAEBERAR ([REEH
R E2HBAED  REAEK
55,005,0007C - RABIEERAE * R
SRR FBRFN BT EBBE
AT o

RZBEZNF+_A=+=H ' AR
ARG E IR EBR AR ([
BINE| HARABIERATE
EBRLTEHZAR) RRITEBL
(KRBRIATESERBRL L ZE
8) ST Bt - Bt - AR A
EELEMELEEBEERZBER
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35. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(b)

(Continued)

Due to the value of the investments is uncertain,
in the opinion of the Company’s directors, the profit
arising from this transaction is not accounted for
in the consolidated income statement for the year
ended 31 March 2005 until the completion of the
settlement of this transaction. At 31 March 2005,
the amount due from SMI
HK$36,400,000.

amounted to

At 31 March 2005, the amounts due from the
associates were HK$1,870,000 and the Group had
made full provision against these amounts due from
the associates.

Mr. Chen Ping, the chairman and executive director
of the Company, and Tide Fuhua Technology
Limited, a company controlled by Mr. Chen Ping,
have given personal guarantee and corporate
guarantee
HK$4,000,000 to secure banking facility granted

to a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. At

respectively to the extent of

31 March 2005, no amount of this facility was
utilized by that subsidiary.

36. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENT

37.

(a)

After the balance sheet date, the Group has
disposed of the Unconsolidated Subsidiaries at the
aggregate considerations by reference to the
nominal values of issued share capital of the

Unconsolidated Subsidiaries.

After the balance sheet date, the directors
proposed a share consolidation and capital
reorganisation. Further details are disclosed in the

directors’ report.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to

conform with the current year’s presentation.
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